Meeting of the Audit and Standards Committee
Monday 29th July, 2019 at 6.00pm
In Committee Room 3 at the Council House, Priory Road, Dudley

Agenda - Public Session
(Meeting open to the public and press)
1.

Apologies for absence.

2.

To report the appointment of any substitute members serving for this meeting
of the Committee.

3.

To receive any declarations of interest under the Members’ Code of Conduct.

4.

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 15th April, 2019 as a
correct record.

5.

External Audit Findings Report 2018/2019 (Pages 1-41)

6.

Grant Thornton (External Auditors) – Fee Letter 2019/2020 (Pages 42-47)

7.

Risk Management (Pages 48-59)

8.

Review of the Code of Corporate Governance (Pages 60-80)

9.

Annual Governance Statement (Pages 81-107)

10.

Statement of Accounts 2018/2019 (Pages 108-112)

11.

Committee Work Plan 2019/2020 (Pages 113-115)

12.

Re-appointment of the Standards Sub-Committee (Pages 116-117)

13.

Audit Services Annual Performance 2018/2019 (Pages 118-138)

14.

To consider any questions from Members to the Chair where two clear days
notice has been given to the Monitoring Officer (Council Procedure Rule
11.8).

Chief Executive
Dated: 19th July, 2019

Distribution:
Members of the Audit and Standards Committee:
Councillor A Taylor (Chair)
Councillor J Roberts (Vice-Chair)
Councillors A Aston, J Cowell, M Evans, S Keasey, S Mughal, G Partridge and
T Westwood

Please note the following:


In the event of the alarms sounding, please leave the building by the nearest
exit. There are Officers who will assist you in the event of this happening,
please follow their instructions.



There is no smoking on the premises in line with national legislation. It is an
offence to smoke in or on these premises.



Public WiFi is available in the Council House. The use of mobile devices or
electronic facilities is permitted for the purposes of recording/reporting during
the public session of the meeting. The use of any such devices must not
disrupt the meeting – Please turn off any ringtones or set your devices to
silent.



If you (or anyone you know) is attending the meeting and requires assistance
to access the venue and/or its facilities, please contact us in advance and we
will do our best to help you.



You can view the Democratic Services Privacy Notice and much more
information about the Council on our website www.dudley.gov.uk
Elected Members



Agendas containing reports with exempt information should be treated as
private and confidential. It is your responsibility to ensure that information
containing private and personal data is kept safe and secure at all times.
Following the meeting confidential papers should be handed to the Democratic
Services Officer for secure disposal. If you choose to retain the documents you
should ensure that the information is securely stored and destroyed within six
months.



Members can submit apologies by contacting Democratic Services. The
appointment of any Substitute Member(s) should be notified to Democratic
Services at least one hour before the meeting starts.

 You can contact Democratic Services by Telephone 01384 815238 or E-mail
Democratic.Services@dudley.gov.uk

Minutes of Audit and Standards Committee
Monday 15th April, 2019 at 6.00 p.m.
in Committee Room 3, The Council House, Dudley

Present:Councillor A Aston (Chair)
Councillor M Evans (Vice-Chair)
Councillors J Cowell, S Keasey, S Mughal, J Roberts, E Taylor, D Tyler and T
Westwood
Officers:
I Newman (Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services), M Farooq (Lead for Law
and Governance), M Grainger (Corporate Fraud Manager), G Harrison (Head of
Audit Services), E Newman (Principal Auditor); A Taylor (Principal Auditor), and L
Jury (Democratic Services Officer)
Also in Attendance:
A Lunt - Strategic Director Place – for agenda item no. 6
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Declarations of Interest
No member made a declaration of interest in accordance with the Member’s Code
of Conduct.

45

Minutes
Resolved
That the minutes of the meeting held on 4th February, 2019, be approved
as a correct record and signed.

46

Whistleblowing Policy
A report of the Monitoring Officer was submitted in relation to the operation of the
Council’s Whistleblowing Policy.
The Monitoring Officer, in presenting the report, referred to the introduction of the
Policy in July 1999 and updates made in March 2019. A copy of the current
policy was attached as Appendix 4. Specific reference was made to two key
changes to the policy at paragraphs 9.2 and 12.3 noting that, generally the
Monitoring Officer is consulted and receives details of the disclosure and a copy
of the final report. However, there have been occasions when this has not
occurred, therefore, the update was to reinforce to Managers that this should be
happening in all instances. It was noted that the remaining changes were minor
updates regarding contact details.
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Reference was made to paragraph 7 of the report which outlined the six
disclosures of which four were found ‘Not Proven’, one found to be ‘Proven’ and
one investigation was still on-going.
It was reported that during the last twelve months, there had been six reports of
the use of the policy, five referrals in relation to the People Directorate and one to
the Place Directorate. It was noted that the Chief Executive’s Directorate had
received none.
The Monitoring Officer confirmed that should the Committee be mindful to
approve the policy, posters would be displayed around the Council’s buildings,
staff would be reminded of the policy through briefings and emails and the policy
would be published in the Chief Executive’s Blog and in the Council’s ‘Keep it
Brief’.
It was noted that a report on referrals had been submitted to Corporate Board on
26th March 2019 and would be submitted annually.
Arising from the presentation of the report, members asked questions and
answers were given at the meeting.
Resolved
That, the information contained in the report in relation to the outcome of
the recent monitoring of the Whistleblowing Policy, be noted.
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Risk Management
A report of the Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services was submitted updating
members on the current Corporate Risks and other matters relating to risk
management. Appendix 1 to the report, showed details of Corporate Risks which
were generally acknowledged as being the most significant facing the Council,
impacting upon at least one or several of the Council’s key objectives and in
addition to risks tabled in Appendix 1, the Committee were requested to identify
any particular risk for closer scrutiny the next time a risk report was scheduled.
It was noted that at the meeting held on 4 th February 2019, the Committee agreed
to defer scrutiny of Risk R306 which related to Brexit, to the next meeting due to
the national position at the time.
The Deputy Chief Executive then delivered a detailed presentation to the
Committee outlining the following:


The current position in relation to Brexit –
i) an extension to Article 50 had been sanctioned to 31st October 2019
but an earlier withdrawal was possible if the current negotiated
Withdrawal Agreement was ratified by the UK and European Union
(EU);
ii) European elections would be held on 23rd May 2019 if a withdrawal
agreement was not ratified by that date. Preparations were being
undertaken by the Council in anticipation of the European elections;
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iii) The EU would in effect, implement a no deal Brexit on 31st May 2019
should the UK not hold European Parliament elections;
iv) If the Withdrawal Agreement is not ratified by 31st October 2019, then a
‘no deal’ withdrawal would be the default position.


Corporate Risk
Issues for economy, procurement and particularly environmental and
Trading Standards policies which could impinge upon the Council’s
capability to deliver services. As a result, an internal Corporate Brexit
Group had been established with representatives from all service
providers across the Council and chaired by the Strategic Director Place.



Joined up approach – working with:
i) West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA) Programme Board –
provides Councils with weekly roll up of data between the Local
Authorities and Central Government, chaired by the Chief Executive
Solihull who was the Chief Executive for Brexit.
ii) Local Resilience Forum – provides a multi-agency approach across the
region and holds weekly reviews of what has happened and concerns
with regards to Brexit. The Forum maintains communication with the
Council and Central Government.
iii) WMCA Brexit Commission – established by the Combined Authority
Mayor focusing on the potential economic impact of Brexit. Several
Thematic Groups had also been set up and Dudley has representatives
on all the groups.
iv) The Dudley Brexit Group together with the Chamber of Commerce were
providing support to businesses which included non-chamber members.
One of the biggest concerns was that businesses were carrying on
regardless and not understanding the potential impact of any form of
Brexit.



Process – which included:
i) The Brexit Group in Dudley were responsible for overseeing Brexit and
the Strategic Director Place reported to Corporate Board as and when
required.
ii) Central Government advice and guidance was tracked daily.
iii) Our Business Continuity and Emergency Plans had been reviewed to
ensure that everybody was aware of their role should Brexit occur and
any negative implications.
iv) Several multi-agency workshops had been held focusing on specific
issues around what could potentially happen in the event of Brexit;
v) Dudley Risk Register specifically for Brexit as the risks associated with
varying services differed significantly.
vi) Weekly roll-up of data through Chief Executive Group and Resilience
Forum to continue planning and ensure vigilancy around Brexit.



Summary of Combined Authority Thematic Groups
Members were assured that there was Senior Management representative
at each of the Groups who reported back to Corporate Board.
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Risk Management
i) National and local economic picture as there were clearly different
perceptions on what the impact on the economy would be. Advice and
guidance was being sought and this would be under review, noting that
the authority was focusing on the worst case scenario that, as a Local
Authority there was only so much that could be done.
ii) Government had underwritten all EU funding programmes which had
been agreed before the end of 2020 that they would continue to fund
these until the UK left the EU.
iii) Delivery of commissioned health and social care was an area of concern
due to the numbers of workers from the EU and the potential impact if
numbers were affected in the event of a no-deal Brexit.
iv) Interruptions to supply chain both in the West Midlands and specifically
Dudley who supply goods to the EU.
v) Concern relating to public disorder, however there had been no
indications of this but it would be kept under review.
vi) Settlement scheme for EU nationals and the workforce noting that the
Council’s Human Resources section would assist any of our workforce
affected by the settlement.
vii) Issues relating to access to data held outside the UK.
viii)Additional funding to maintain existing service provision (£50m
nationally, £210,000 for Dudley and £186,000 for Combined Authority).

In conclusion, the Deputy Chief Executive stated that the authority was in a difficult
position and contingency and emergency plans were in place based on a ‘worst
case scenario’. It was acknowledged that it was very difficult to plan for the future
due to the uncertainty at national level.
In responding, the Chair, on behalf of the Committee, acknowledged the significant
amount of work that had been undertaken and had been reassured that Dudley was
being represented regionally on all the Groups mentioned in the presentation.
Arising from the presentation, Members raised questions and made comments
which were responded to at the meeting. In response to Members’ concerns raised
in relation to the terminology and language being used referring to the phrase ‘worst
case scenario’ if no deal was to be agreed, the Deputy Chief Executive reassured
Members that this was the steer coming from Central Government that was being
followed by all authorities and was not his personal view point or that of the local
authority.
In response to a concern regarding support for small businesses, the Strategic
Director Place assured Members that any businesses who contacted the authority
for guidance would be signposted to the Chamber of Commerce to draw on their
expertise and ensure that up-to-date, consistent advice was given.

Resolved
(1)

That the information contained in the report and Appendix 1 to the report
submitted on corporate risks appearing to the highest level on the Council’s
risk register, be noted.
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(2)

That the information contained in the presentation on risk R.306 relating to
Brexit and comments made by Members as outlined above, be noted.

(3)

That, risk R22 relating to Vulnerable People be identified as the specific
risk for in-depth scrutiny the next time a risk report was referred for
consideration by the Committee.

Internal Audit Plan 2019/2020
A report of the Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services was submitted in relation
to the Internal Audit Plan for the period from 1st April 2019 to 31st March 2020.
The Audit Plan 2019/2020 was attached as an Appendix to the report submitted.
The Head of Audit Services presented the report stating that the report detailed
the proposed Internal Audit Plan 2019/2020 and the methodology used in
producing the plan. It was noted that the Head of Audit Services was required to
deliver an internal audit opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness on the
Council’s framework covering governance, risk management and control and that
the Audit Plan had been prepared to fulfil this requirement.
Paragraphs of specific importance were presented, including paragraph 6 of the
report which detailed the resources available to Audit Services, noting that the
section had significantly reduced over the last 5 years which had resulted in the
need for a robust planning and prioritising process, hence the approach taken as
set out in paragraph 8 of the report.
Continuing, the Head of Audit Services made reference to the process that had
been followed, as set out in paragraphs 9 and 10 of the report, which had resulted
in a plan that focused Audit Services’ resources on areas of greatest risk.
It was noted that within the plan, there were elements that provided vital advice
and support to assist Strategic Directors/Chief Officers to manage change in their
services, ensuring that risks had been identified and that effective controls were in
place. It was also noted that if a significant risk emerged during the year that had
not been considered within the audit planning process, the plan could be adjusted
which may result in audits in the initial plan being postponed so that the risk could
be accommodated. If for any other reason audits needed to be postponed and
replacement audits were to be undertaken from the reserve list, the audits would
be bought to the attention of this Committee as part of the interim reporting
process.
In conclusion, reference was made to paragraph 17 of the report, which detailed
the breakdown of the Audit Plan in comparison to the previous year, noting that
approximately 10% of the plan was devoted to income generation work and
approximately 18% to fraud related work.
Resolved
(1)

That the Internal Audit Plan for 2019/2020 attached as an Appendix to the
report submitted, be approved.
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Report of the Committee on Standards In Public Life – Local Government
Ethical Standards
The Committee considered a report of the Monitoring Officer on the report of the
Committee on Standards in Public Life in relation to Local Government Ethical
Standards.
In presenting the report, the Monitoring Officer referred to previous meetings of
this Committee where it had been reported that the Standards in Public Life were
reviewing Ethical Standards. Their investigation had now been concluded and
recommendations had been produced. Appendix A to the report contained an
Executive Summary and it was reported that the full report was available to
peruse on the internet.
The Monitoring Officer had reviewed the report and in his opinion, the report was
overly bureaucratic and offered little practical assistance for local authorities.
Referring to the List of recommendations, as set out on pages 49 to 52, specific
reference was made to recommendation No 2 noting that the omission of the
address of candidates standing for, or accepting public office, had been
recommended as a consequence of the murder of Jo Cox MP and would be
implemented from this May. The recommendation also proposed that Councillor’s
should not need to register their home address on an authority’s register of
interests and the Monitoring Officer stated that this issue was still to be resolved.
Referring to recommendation No. 16, in relation to Local Authorities be given the
power to suspend Councillors, without allowances, for up to six months, the
Monitoring Officer made reference to the Council having written to the
Government as a result of a Standards Sub-Committee meeting held in the early
part of last year. A response to that letter was attached as Appendix B to the
report submitted. In highlighting recommendation No.13 stating that Councillors
should be given the right to appeal to the Local Government Ombudsman (LGO)
if their relevant Local Authority imposed a suspension, the Monitoring Officer
reported that if Councillors had the right to appeal to the LGO, this would create a
big issue from a workload perspective.
Referring to recommendation No.23 in respect of the Local Government
Transparency Code and the Whistleblowing Policy, the Monitoring Officer assured
Members that this was already being implemented in Dudley as discussed in the
agenda item previously considered at this meeting.
In conclusion, it was reported that these recommendations would be considered
by the Government in due course and primary and secondary legislation would be
required. In so far as the recommendation No. 16 and the response from the
Government to the letter sent by the Council, the Monitoring Officer referred to the
penultimate paragraph of the letter and stated that this may be an indication of
what the Government’s view was going to be on the six months suspension
recommendation. It was noted that before 2012 the Local Authority had the
power to disqualify a Member and the view at the time was that if the matter being
considered was of a serious nature, it should be dealt with as a criminal matter,
and if less serious, it should be left for the local electorate to decide at the next
election.
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Arising from consideration of the report, the Chair commented that he had sat on
the Standards Sub-Committee that had been referred to and all Members of the
Committee had felt incredibly frustrated at the options available to them.
Resolved
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(1)

That, the information contained in the report submitted and Appendix to the
report submitted, on the Committee on Standards in Public Life – Local
Government Ethical Standards, be noted.

(2)

That, the Monitoring Officer submit a report on the Government’s response
to the recommendations in due course.

Exclusion of the Public
Resolved
That the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information relating to any individual(s) or any action taken, or to be
taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of
crime, as defined under Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act
1972.

51

Report required Under Standing Orders relating to Contracts
A report of the Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services was submitted on
Standing Orders that require each Strategic Director to report to this Committee
on any cases arising under Standing Order 1.9. This report covered the period
from July 2018 to December 2018 inclusive.
In presenting the report, the Head of Audit Services made reference to paragraph
3 which detailed the different exceptions to Standing Orders. It was noted that in
relation to the first three exceptions, no instances had been identified. The only
exception identified related to Exception 4 – Waivers to Standing Orders, which
was detailed at Appendix A. The exception related to a company that had two
similar contracts with the Council that expired on different dates and it was
proposed to extend one contract to enable both contracts to expire at the same
time, so that they could be jointly tendered.
Resolved
That, the information contained in the report regarding Standing Orders
relating to Contracts, be noted.

52

Audit Services Annual Fraud Report
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A report of the Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services was submitted on the
work that Audit Services had undertaken, and were planning to undertake to
manage the risk of fraud and corruption across the Council, together with
information on the work of the Housing Benefits Team, Housing Tenancy Fraud
Team and other Anti-Fraud work undertaken across the Council. A copy of the
Fraud Action Plan was appended to the report submitted for approval.
The Head of Audit Services, presented the report and in doing so made particular
reference to:
 the work undertaken in relation to the prevention and detection of fraud;
 a review of the corporate risk register;
 the continual and successful use of the Fraud Hotline to raise referrals;
 the Fraud and Enforcement Data Hub used by many teams within the
Council who have all benefited from its use and its imminent roll out to
Adult Social Care Finance Team to assist in financial assessments;
 fraud investigation, noting that Audit Services had obtained approval for
the Lead for Law and Governance to prosecute two cases which had
previously been presented to this Committee;
 the Council’s successful recovery of funds using the Proceeds of Crime
Act legislation;
 the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) and the benefits generated from its use;
 the Trading Standards Scam Unit, dedicated to raising awareness of
financial scams to borough residents, particularly those deemed
vulnerable;
 the work of the Housing Tenancy Fraud Team.
The Corporate Fraud Manager then joined the Head of Audit Services to answer
any questions.
Arising from the presentation of the report, Members asked questions and made
comments in relation to the content within the report and appendices, particularly
in relation to the percentage of Housing Benefit overpayments being recovered.
The Corporate Fraud Manager undertook to circulate this information to Members
of the Committee.

Resolved
That, the Fraud Action Plan 2019/20, attached as Appendix A to the
report submitted, be approved.

53

Chair’s Remarks
As this was the last meeting of the municipal year, the Chair thanked Members and
Officers for their attendance and support and expressed best wishes to all Members
in the forthcoming elections.
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The meeting ended at 7.20pm

CHAIR
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Agenda Item No. 5

Audit and Standards Committee – 29th July 2019
Report of the Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services
External Audit Findings Report 2018/2019
Purpose of Report
1.

To consider the external auditor’s Audit Findings Report, Independent Auditor’s
Report and formal Management Representation Letter to the Auditor.

Recommendation
2.

It is recommended that:• the Committee considers and comments on the Audit Findings Report
2018/19 (Appendix 1).
• the Committee notes the Independent Auditor’s Draft Opinion Report
(Appendix 2).
• the Committee considers the draft Letter of Representation (Appendix 3).
• the Committee authorises the Chair to sign and date the final version of the
Letter of Representation in due course.

Background
3.
The Council has delegated the responsibility for the approval of the Statement of
Accounts, and all audit matters, to the Audit and Standards Committee.
4.

Grant Thornton UK LLP have been re-appointed by Public Sector Audit
Appointments Ltd as the Council’s auditor until 2022/23.

5.

The Audit Findings report, presents the observations arising from the audit of the
2018/19 accounts which the auditor deems significant to those charged with the
governance to oversee the financial reporting process. Appendix 1 will be
presented by the external auditor.

6.

The Independent auditor’s Draft Opinion report is solely for the benefit of the
members of the Authority is attached as Appendix 2 and will be presented by the
external auditor. It includes findings from the audit of the 2018/19 accounts, and
opinions on going concern and Value for Money.
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7.

Towards the end of each audit of the annual accounts, the Chief Officer Finance
and Legal Services provides a management representation letter (sometimes
known as a letter of comfort), confirming the completeness and reliability of the
information and records supplied to the auditors. The external auditors request that
this letter should also be signed by the Chair of Audit and Standards Committee, to
evidence members’ acknowledgment of responsibility for financial management. A
draft of this letter is attached as Appendix 3.

8.

At the time of writing, Appendix 3 is a draft and may need to be amended in light of
outstanding work on the valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment. It is therefore
proposed that the committee authorises the Chair to sign the final version of this
letter in due course.

Finance
9.

This report is financial in nature but does not give rise to any direct costs.

Law
10.

Legislation appertaining to Local Authority Audit and Accounts is contained in the
Local Government Act 1972 and the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Equality Impact
11.

The proposals take into account the Council’s Policy on Equality and Diversity.

Human Resources/Transformation
12.

There are no Human Resources / Transformation implications resulting from the
items in this report

Commercial Implications
13.

There are no issues arising from this report

Iain Newman
Chief Officer Finance & Legal Services
Contact Officer: Rachel Cooper
Telephone: 01384 814844
Email: rachel.cooper@dudley.gov.uk
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Appendix 1

The Audit Findings
for Dudley Metropolitan Borough
Council
Year ended 31 March 2019
29 July 2019

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council | 2018/19
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Contents
Section

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

1. Headlines

3

2. Financial statements

5

3. Value for money

18

4. Independence and ethics

24

Appendices
A. Action plan

Richard Percival
Key Audit Partner
T: 0121 232 5434
E: richard.d.percival@uk.gt.com

B. Follow up of prior year recommendations
C. Audit adjustments
D. Fees

Terry Tobin
Senior Manager
T: 0121 232 5276
E: terry.p.tobin@uk.gt.com

William Guest
In charge auditor
T: 0121 232 5319
E: william.guest@uk.gt.com

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify
control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements
in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our
prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report
was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is
available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.
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Headlines
This table summarises the key issues arising from the statutory audit of Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council (‘the Council’) and the preparation of the Council's financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2019 for those charged with governance.
Financial
Statements

Under the International Standards of Auditing (UK) (ISAs), we are
required to report whether, in our opinion:
• the Council's financial statements give a true and fair view of the
Council’s financial position and of the group and Council’s
expenditure and income for the year, and
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting and
prepared in accordance with the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014.
We are also required to report whether other information published
together with the audited financial statements (including the Statement
of Accounts, Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and Narrative
Report), is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Value for Money
arrangements

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the
Code'), we are required to report whether, in our opinion:
• the Council has made proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources ('the value for
money (VFM) conclusion')
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Our audit work was carried out on site during June and July 2019. The accounts were
prepared to a good standard together with appropriate working papers available from
the start of the audit. We have identified two adjustments to the financial statements
that have resulted in a total impact on net expenditure of £15.794 million. These do not
impact on useable reserves. Audit adjustments are detailed in Appendix C. Our follow
up of recommendations from the prior year’s audit are detailed in Appendix B.
At the time of drafting the report our audit work was still in progress and we had issues
to clear on land and buildings valuations. Subject to outstanding queries being
resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion following the Audit and
Standards Committee meeting on 29 July 2019. These outstanding items include the
receipt of management representation letter and the review of the final set of financial
statements.
We have concluded that the other information published with the financial statements,
which includes the Statement of Accounts, Annual Governance Statement and
Narrative Report, are consistent with our knowledge of your organisation and with the
financial statements we have audited.
We have completed our risk based review of the Council’s value for money
arrangements. Although there continue to be uncertainties in the Council’s medium
term financial outlook, we have concluded that the Council has proper arrangements
for planning finances effectively to support the sustainable delivery of strategic
priorities and maintain statutory functions. We have considered this carefully in light of
the savings plans in place, the increases in unfunded spending planned and the
reducing level of General Fund balances. The Ofsted full inspection report published in
November 2018 noted significant improvements in services for safeguarding children
and assessed the service as “requires improvement to be good”. We concluded that
not withstanding the areas highlighted for improvement by Ofsted, the Council has
proper arrangements for understanding and using appropriate and reliable financial
and performance information, including from regulatory/monitoring bodies to support
informed decision making and performance management.

Headlines (continued)
Statutory duties

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (‘the Act’) also requires us
to:
• report to you if we have applied any of the additional powers and
duties ascribed to us under the Act; and
• certify the closure of the audit

We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties.
We have completed the majority of work under the Code and expect to be able to
certify the completion of the audit when we give our audit opinion.

Acknowledgements
We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the excellent assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.
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Financial statements

Summary
Audit approach

Overview of the scope of our audit




Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business
and is risk based, and in particular included:

This Audit Findings presents the observations arising from the audit that are
significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the
financial reporting process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK)
260 and the Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’). Its contents will be discussed with the
Audit and Standards Committee.

An evaluation of the Council's internal controls environment including its IT systems
and controls; and
Substantive testing on significant transactions and material account balances,
including the procedures outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK), which is directed towards forming and
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by
management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the
financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance
of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

Conclusion
We have substantially completed our audit of your financial statements and subject to
outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion
following the Audit and Standards Committee meeting on 29 July 2019, as detailed in
papers to the Committee. These outstanding items include the receipt of management
representation letter and review of the final set of financial statements.

Our approach to materiality
The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements
Materiality calculations remains the same as reported in our audit plan. We detail in the
and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to
table below our assessment of materiality for the Council.
disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable
law.
Amount
Qualitative factors considered
Materiality for the financial
statements

£12m

We determined materiality for the audit of the Council’s financial statements as a whole to be
£12,000,000, which is 1.8% of the Council’s gross operating expenses in 2017/18 after discounting the
effect of the revaluation gain on housing stock.

Performance materiality

£9m

We used a lower level of materiality, to determine the extent of our testing. We set this at 75% of financial
statement materiality.

Trivial matters

£600k

We determined the threshold at which we would communicate misstatements to the Audit and Standards
Committee at £600,000 (5% of financial statement materiality)

Materiality for specific
transactions, balances or
disclosures

£100k

We have set a lower level of materiality for senior manager remuneration disclosures because we believe
these disclosures are of specific interest to the reader of the accounts.
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Financial statements

Going concern
Our responsibility
As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK) 570).
Going concern commentary
Management's assessment process

Auditor commentary

The Council has approved a budget for the financial year 2019/20, and updated the
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), which sets out spending and resources for
three years ahead.

ISA (UK) 570 requires the auditor to evaluate management’s assessment of the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern for at least 12 months from the date of the
accounts.

The Chief Officer (Finance and Legal Services) (as s151 Officer) has reported (under
Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003) that the budget proposals are based on
robust estimates, and that the level of reserves is adequate for 2019/20. He also noted
that there are forecast underlying budget deficits in all future years and although these
deficits can be met from reserves over the next few years, this is unsustainable in the
longer term

The Council’s arrangements to set a budget, taking into account its key funding sources
and expenditure requirements are appropriate.

Work performed

Auditor commentary

We have reviewed the 2019/20 budget and updated MTFS as part of out Value for
Money Conclusion work. We have considered the key variables in the MTFS and the
financial risks the Council is managing.

•

Concluding comments

Auditor commentary
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We did not identify any material uncertainties relating to going concern up to the end of
July 2020.

•

There is no impact on our opinion from our management’s going concern
assessment.

•

We have noted as part of our review of the MTFS that the forecast position to the end
of 2021/22 includes a planned use of general fund working balances. The outlook is
challenging and requires the Council to either deliver further savings or more likely
increase its income. We are satisfied that there are no events or conditions identified
in the course of the audit that cast significant doubt on the Council's ability to continue
as a going concern.

Financial Statements

Significant audit risks


Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Improper revenue recognition
Under ISA 240 (UK) there is a presumed risk that
revenue may be misstated due to the improper
recognition of revenue.

Auditor commentary
Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at the Council, we have
determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:
•

there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

•

opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

•

the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including the Council, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as
unacceptable

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for the Council.



Management override of controls

Auditor commentary

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable
presumed risk that the risk of management over-ride
of controls is present in all entities.
We identified management override of controls as a
risk requiring special audit consideration.

Our audit work included:
•

gaining an understanding of the accounting estimates, judgements applied and decisions made by management and
consider their reasonableness

•

obtaining a full listing of journal entries, identify and tested unusual journal entries for appropriateness

•

evaluating the rationale for any changes in accounting policies or significant unusual transactions.

Our audit work has not identified any evidence of management over-ride of controls. In particular the findings of our
review of journal controls and testing of journal entries has not identified any significant issues.
At the time of drafting we had not concluded our work on the completeness of the journals population.
We set out later in this section of the report our work and findings on key accounting estimates and judgements.
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Financial statements

Significant audit risks


Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Valuation of land and buildings

Auditor commentary

The Council revalues its land and buildings on a
rolling five year programme to ensure that the
carrying value is not materially different from fair
value. It also carries out a desk top exercise each
year to ensure that those assets not revalued in
that year are not materially misstated. This
represents a significant estimate by management in
the financial statements due to its size as land and
buildings form around 75% of the Authority’s assets.

Our audit work included, but was not restricted to:

We identified the valuation of land and buildings
valuations as a risk requiring special audit
consideration.
.

•

assessing management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to
valuation experts and the scope of their work;

•

evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the Council’s management experts;

•

assessing and challenging the information used by the valuer to obtain sufficient assurance that ensure it was robust
and consistent with our understanding;

•

discussing with the valuer the basis on which the valuation was carried out, including challenging the key
assumptions used; and

•

evaluating the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year and how
management has satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to current value.

The Council's accounting policy on land and buildings PPE valuations is shown in note 33 to the financial statements
and related disclosures are included in note 17.
Housing stock has been valued as at the 1st April 2018. The valuation should be as at the 31st March 2019. This
valuation is the 1 st April 2017 valuation updated by indices. We have challenged how management have obtained
assurance that the valuation is appropriate for the 31st March 2019.
At the time of drafting these issues had not been resolved and our work on the Other Land and Buildings was not
complete.
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Financial statements

Significant audit risks


Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Valuation of pension fund net liability

Auditor commentary

Our audit work included, but was not restricted to:
The Council's pension fund net liability, as reflected in
• gaining an understanding of the processes and the controls put in place by management to ensure that the net
its balance sheet, is a significant estimate in the
pension fund liability was not materially misstated and evaluating the design of the associated controls;
financial statements. The net liability accounts for
36% of the Council’s liabilities.
• evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the Council’s actuary who carried out the pension fund
valuation;
We therefore identified the valuation of the pension
• gaining an understanding of the basis on which the valuation was carried out, including evaluating the reasonableness
fund net liability as a risk requiring special audit
of the significant assumptions used by management and their actuary;
consideration.
• confirming the consistency of the pension fund gross asset and gross liability figures and associated disclosures in the
notes to the financial statements with the actuarial report from the actuary;
•

obtaining and evaluating the results of work performed by the Pension Fund’s external auditor which was of
relevance to the valuation of the net pension liability; and

•

performing analytical procedures in respect of the gross pension fund assets and liabilities.

The Council's accounting policy on the valuation of the net pension fund liability is shown in note 33 to the financial
statements and related disclosures are included in note 28.
At the time the accounts were prepared there was significant uncertainty about whether the Government would be have
leave to appeal to the Supreme Court following the Court of Appeals decision in the McCloud case concerning age
discrimination in Firefighters’ pension schemes. This is a national issue and there have been significant developments
during the course of our audit. In late June the Government was refused leave to appeal, which meant that the impact on
local authorities pension liabilities became more certain.
We asked the Council to commission an updated actuary report to consider the impact of the recent McCloud court ruling
on pensions liabilities. The Council agreed and as a result has the net pension liabilities increased by almost £15.8
million. The accounts have been restated for this change. This has no impact on the Council’s useable reserves.
In October 2018, the High Court ruled that defined benefit pension schemes must remove any discriminatory effect that
guaranteed minimum pension entitlements (GMPs) have had on members benefits. GMPs must be equalised between
men and women and that past underpayments must be corrected. Actuaries have taken differing approaches to this
issue. We have concluded that there is a low risk of material estimation uncertainty for GMPs in the Council’s revised
pension liability.
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Financial statements

Estimates and judgements–review of issues raised in prior year
Issue and risk previously communicated

Update on actions taken to address the issue

Estimates and judgements -PFI (Paragon Schools) disclosure
The Council is required to disclose the future unitary payments (split into service
charges, repayment of Liability, and finance costs) for the life of the schemes. For
the Paragon Schools disclosure we identified differences between the model used
by the Council and our own model.

Pages 98 and 99 of the 2018/19 draft financial statements contains the required
disclosure. As in previous years differences were noted, across the split of the unitary
payment, between the model used by the Council and our own model. These differences
are set out in the table below and overall there is a trivial impact on the total future unitary
payments disclosed. Officers consider that their model is appropriate and have not
adjusted for this.

The differences were across the split of the unitary payment (service charge,
liability and finance costs). Overall there was a trivial impact on the total future
unitary payments disclosed.

Service Charge
£000

Finance costs
£000

Repayment of Liability
£000

Unitary payment
£000

-336

326

48

153

2-5 years

-1,859

1,165

49

-55

6-10 years

-3,042

977

1,023

-90

11-15 years

-1,828

145

-870

-2,111

Total

-7,065

2,614

251

-2,102

Within 1 year
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Financial statements

Significant findings – key judgements and estimates
Accounting area

Summary of management’s policy

Audit Comments

Provisions for NNDR
appeals - £15.1m

The Council are responsible for repaying a proportion
of successful rateable value appeals. Management’s
calculation is based upon the latest information about
outstanding rates appeals provided by the Valuation
Office Agency (VOA) and previous success rates. The
provision has stayed the same from in 2017/18.

The Council has made a provision for the Business Rate appeals that have
been received but not settled at year end and an assessment of potential
appeals. The Council's estimate is based on the likelihood of various types of
claims having to be settled and the estimated value of the settlement. The
Council’s provision follows a similar basis to the previous year and overall we
are satisfied with the approach taken and that the provision is not materially
misstated.

The Council owns 21,734 dwellings and is required to
revalue these properties in accordance with MHCLG’s
Stock Valuation for Resource Accounting guidance.
The guidance requires the use of beacon
methodology, in which a detailed valuation of
representative property types is then applied to similar
properties. The Council has engaged its own in-house
valuer to complete the valuation of these properties.
The year end valuation of Council Housing was
£906m in the draft accounts, a net increase from
2017/18 balance of £877m.

The draft accounts initially contained a valuation as at 1 April 2018 based on a
percentage uplift of the 1 April 2017 valuation. We have challenged the basis
for this valuation and whether it meets the Code requirements.

Land and Buildings –
Council Housing £906m

At the time of drafting we have insufficient audit assurance to conclude on this
issue.

Assessment
 We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious
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Assessment


Green

Financial statements

Significant findings – key judgements and estimates
Land and Buildings –
Other - £388m

Summary of management’s policy

Audit Comments

Other land and buildings comprises specialised assets
such as schools and libraries, which are required to be
valued at depreciated replacement cost (DRC) at year
end, reflecting the cost of a modern equivalent asset
necessary to deliver the same service provision. The
remainder of other land and buildings are not specialised
in nature and are required to be valued at existing use in
value (EUV) at year end. The Council has engaged its inhouse valuer to complete the valuation of properties as at
31 March 2019 on a five yearly cyclical basis. 16% of total
assets were revalued during 2018/19. The valuation of
properties valued by the valuer has resulted in a net
increase of £3m. Management has considered the year
end value of non-valued properties and the potential
valuation change in the assets revalued at 31 March 2019
to determine whether there has been a material change in
the total value of these properties. Management’s
assessment of assets not revalued has identified no
material change to the properties value.

We assessed management’s expert as competent and concluded
positively on the completeness and accuracy of the underlying
information used to determine the estimate.
At the time of drafting our work in this area was not complete. We wrote
to the valuer in June seeking confirmation of the methods and
assumptions used. We have not received a response.
We are also seeking clarification from management on how they have
considered the risk of estimation uncertainty in assets valued before
the year end and assets not re-valued in 2018/19.
At the time of drafting we have insufficient audit assurance to conclude
on these issues.

Assessment
 We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious
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Assessment

Financial statements

Significant findings – key judgements and estimates
Net pension
liability –
£537m

Summary of management’s policy

Audit Comments

Assessment

The Council’s net pension liability in its draft
accounts at 31 March 2019 is £537m (PY
£497m) comprises the West Midlands
Pension Fund Local Government and
unfunded defined benefit pension scheme
obligations. The Council uses Barnett
Waddingham to provide actuarial valuations
of the Council’s assets and liabilities. A full
actuarial valuation is required every three
years. The latest full actuarial valuation was
completed in 2016. A roll forward approach
is used in intervening periods, which utilises
key assumptions such as life expectancy,
discount rates, salary growth and investment
returns. Given the significant value of the net
pension fund liability, small changes in
assumptions can result in significant
valuation movements. .

PwC were engaged by the NAO as consulting actuary to undertake a central review
of the actuaries used by the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).



They produce a report designed to provide support to auditors when assessing the
competence and objectivity of, and assumptions and approach adopted by, actuaries
producing IAS 19 figures in respect of the LGPS, Police and Fire schemes as at 31
March 2019.

Amber

We use this report to inform our assessment of the valuation of the pension fund
liability in the Authority’s accounts.
We have compared the assumptions used by the Authority’s actuary against industry
benchmarks. Based on the work performed we are able to conclude that
management’s assumptions overall are reasonable.

Assessment
 We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious
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Financial statements

Significant findings – key judgements and estimates
Summary of management’s policy
Net pension
liability –
£537m

Audit Comments

Assessment

We have also reviewed the:
•

Completeness and accuracy of the underlying information used to determine the
estimate

•

Reasonableness of the Authority’s share of LGPS pension assets.

•

Reasonableness of increase/decrease in estimate

•

Adequacy of disclosure of estimate in the financial statements

We also considered the potential impact of Guaranteed Minimum Pension
equalisation (GMPs). We have concluded that there is a low risk of material
estimation uncertainty due to the understatement of the Council’s GMPs liability.
Net pension liabilities were revised by £15.8m during the audit following consideration
by your Actuary of the recent McCloud judgement. We have no other findings to bring
to your attention in this regard

Assessment
 We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious
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Amber

Financial statements

Significant findings – key judgements and estimates
Summary of management’s policy
Valuation of
investment in
Birmingham
Airport

Audit Comments

Valuation of investment in Birmingham
Airport
The Council holds shares in Birmingham
Airport Holdings Limited (BAHL) and is
required to record this investment in the
accounts at fair value. As shares in this
company are not traded frequently the Council
has had to estimate the value of its investment.
The Council has drafted an estimation
approach in conjunction with other West
Midlands Metropolitan Councils that also hold
shares in BAHL


We assessed management’s expert as competent to carry out the valuation. We
employed our own valuation expert to review their work. We concluded that the underlying
information used to determine the estimate was adequate and the basis of the estimate
was consistent with peers and /industry practice. We also considered the disclosure of
estimate in the financial statements were adequate

Assessment
 We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

We consider management’s process and key assumptions to be reasonable
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Green

Financial Statements

Other communication requirements
We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.
Issue

Commentary



Matters in relation to fraud

 We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit and Standards Committee. We have not been made aware of any other
incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.



Matters in relation to related
parties

 We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed



Matters in relation to laws and
regulations

 You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not
identified any incidences from our audit work.



Written representations

 A standard letter of representation has been requested from the Council, which is included in the Committee papers



Confirmation requests from
third parties

 We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to third party banks and other financial institutions and a
number of other local authorities. This permission was granted and the requests were sent. Of these requests all were returned with
positive confirmations.
 There are a number of third party balances where it is more efficient to undertook alternative procedures, including long term debt with
the PWLB where we received central notification of the balances and temporary borrowing where the cash had been repaid before the
audit commenced



Disclosures

 Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements



Audit evidence and
explanations

 All information and explanations requested from management was provided



Significant difficulties

 There were no significant difficulties in performing the audit

18
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Financial statements

Other responsibilities under the Code
We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.



Issue

Commentary

Other information

We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial statements (including
the Statement of Accounts, Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and Narrative Report), is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
No inconsistencies have been identified with the revised AGS and Narrative Report. We plan to issue an unqualified opinion in this
respect.



Matters on which we report by
exception

We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a numbers of areas:
 If the AGS does not meet the disclosure requirements set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is misleading or inconsistent with
the other information of which we are aware from our audit
 If we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties
We have not applied any of our statutory powers or duties. Therefore we have nothing now to report on these matters.





Specified procedures for
Whole of Government
Accounts

We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation
pack under WGA group audit instructions.

Certification of the closure of
the audit

We intend to certify the closure of the 2018/19 audit of the Council in the audit opinion. We expect to be able to certify the completion of
the 2018/19 audit of the Council in our auditor’s report.

As the Council exceeds the specified group reporting threshold we examine and report on the consistency of the WGA consolidation
pack with the Council's audited financial statements. This work is not yet complete and the planned timescale for the work is to complete
this by the end of July.
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Value for Money

Value for Money
Background to our VFM approach

Risk assessment

We are required to satisfy ourselves that the Council has made proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as
the Value for Money (VFM) conclusion.

We carried out an initial risk assessment in January 2019 and identified a number of
significant risks in respect of specific areas of proper arrangements using the
guidance contained in AGN03. We communicated these risks to you in our Audit Plan
dated February 2019.

We are required to carry out sufficient work to satisfy ourselves that proper arrangements
are in place at the Council. In carrying out this work, we are required to follow the NAO's
Auditor Guidance Note 3 (AGN 03) issued in November 2017. AGN 03 identifies one single
criterion for auditors to evaluate:
“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”
This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Informed
decision
making

Value for
Money
arrangements
criteria
Working
with partners
& other third
parties

Sustainable
resource
deployment
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We have continued our review of relevant documents up to the date of giving our
report, and have not identified any further significant risks where we need to perform
further work.
We carried out further work only in respect of the significant risks we identified from
our initial and ongoing risk assessment. Where our consideration of the significant
risks determined that arrangements were not operating effectively, we have used the
examples of proper arrangements from AGN 03 to explain the gaps in proper
arrangements that we have reported in our VFM conclusion.

Value for Money

Value for Money
Our work

Recommendations for improvement

AGN 03 requires us to disclose our views on significant qualitative aspects of the Council's
arrangements for delivering economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

We discussed findings arising from our work with management and have agreed
recommendation for improvement as follows.

We have focused our work on the significant risks that we identified in the Council's
arrangements. In arriving at our conclusion, our main considerations were:

Our recommendations and management's response to these can be found in the
Action Plan at Appendix A

-

the OFSTED inspection of Children’s Services

Significant difficulties in undertaking our work

-

the Council’s financial plans and financial sustainability

We did not identify any significant difficulties in undertaking our work on your
arrangements which we wish to draw to your attention.

AGN 03 requires us to disclose our views on significant qualitative aspects of the Council's
arrangements for delivering economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

Significant matters discussed with management

We have focused our work on the two significant risks that we identified in the Council's
arrangements. We have set out more detail on the risks we identified, the results of the
work we performed and the conclusions we drew from this work on the following pages.

There were no matters where no other evidence was available or matters of such
significance to our conclusion or that we required written representation from
management or those charged with governance.

Overall conclusion
Based on the work we performed to address the significant risks, we are satisfied that the
Council had proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources.
.
The text of our proposed report is included in committee papers
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Value for Money

Key findings
We set out below our key findings against the significant risks we identified through our initial risk assessment and further risks identified through our ongoing review of documents.



Significant risk

Findings

Auditor view

OFSTED Inspection of children’s
Services

Since issuing its 2016 report Ofsted published the outcome of
seven monitoring inspections focussing on different aspects of
service delivery, both highlighting positive progress and areas
where further improvement was required.

We reviewed Ofsted’s monitoring visit letters and the
full inspection report published in November 2018 as
well as discussing the issues contained within the
reports with senior Officers. We took these into
account in forming our conclusion.

Ofsted carried out a full inspection in October and November
2018. The overall assessment score given by Ofsted in their
report published in November was “requires improvement to be
good” but two out of the three themes “(leadership” and “children
in and leaving care”) were assessed as “good”. The “help and
protection” theme was rated as “requires improvement”. Ofsted
reported that the Council had made significant progress since its
last inspection in 2016. It commented that there had been
effective work by senior leaders and staff and investment and
commitment by members and that this had lead to improved
responses to children and families which meant outcomes for
children and their families were much better.

The full inspection report reflects the significant
progress that has been made by the Council in
responding to the issues raised by Ofsted in their
inspection in 2016. The report also highlights where
further improvements are still required.

Risk identified in our audit plan
Ofsted issued a report on the Council’s
children’s services in 2015/16 which rated
these services as ‘inadequate’ and the
Council was subject to regular follow up
reviews. A full follow up inspection at the
end of 2018 by Ofsted confirmed that
adequate arrangements are now in place
but highlighted areas where more progress
was necessary. Children’s Services were
rated as ‘requires improvement to be
good’.
Our response
We will review reports from Ofsted and
take these into account in forming our
conclusion

Ofsted praised the Council’s “recognition of the importance of
preventative services and the considerable joint work with
partners” which has meant that “children and families benefit
from an effective early help service”. Ofsted commented that if
children’s needs escalate in Dudley, they receive a considered
and timely response from social care and that risk to children is
recognised and effective action is taken to minimise that risk.
Areas of service identified as inadequate in the last inspection
were recognised as having “been turned around and now deliver
better quality and more focused and child-centred practice”. In
particular, this has resulted in “good-quality planning for children
in care and better long-term outcomes for them”. Ofsted
reported that children who come into care have plans made to
safely return them home or to ensure that there are good
alternative long-term caring arrangements made for.
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We have concluded that, not withstanding the areas
highlighted by Ofsted for further improvement in
children’s services, the Council has proper
arrangements for understanding and using appropriate
and reliable financial and performance information
including, where relevant, information from
regulatory/monitoring bodies to support informed
decision making and performance management.

Value for Money
Key findings
We set out below our key findings against the significant risks we identified through our initial risk assessment and further risks identified through our ongoing review of documents.



Significant risk

Findings

Auditor view

OFSTED Inspection of children’s
Services (continued)

The report highlighted remaining issues in the speed and quality of the assessment
process for children. The main issue centres around recruitment especially at social work
manager grade. Staff turnover is decreasing but still around a third of social work staff are
agency-although there are plans in place to reduce this significantly. Ofsted said this was
having a detrimental effect especially for the assessment teams. Ofsted found that plans
for children in need should be clearer in terms of actions needed and timeframes and
some young people have remained in care longer than they should.
The Council has drawn up a comprehensive medium term improvement plan to build on
the review and an accompanying action plan. This plan includes links to the Dudley plan,
governance arrangements through to cabinet, a balanced scorecard of KPIs and an action
plan. In the autumn 2019, a three year strategic plan will be agreed with partners.
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Value for Money
Key findings
We set out below our key findings against the significant risks we identified through our initial risk assessment and further risks identified through our ongoing review of documents.
Significant risk



Findings

Auditor view

The Council’s 2018/19 outturn position was an underspend
of £3.4 million against the original budget resulting in
smaller decrease in the General Fund working balance than
expected (a decrease of £4 million to £22.6 million at 31
March 2019). The Council’s earmarked general fund
reserves (excluding schools and Public Health) also
decreased in the year by £0.9 million to £23.4 million.

The better than expected 2018/19 outturn position reduced
the planned use of balances. There are however
continuing significant risks that threaten the Council’s
overall financial stability.

Medium Term Financial Strategy
Risk identified in our audit plan
The October 2018 update for Cabinet of the Medium
Term Financial Strategy shows that during the
2021/22 financial year, the General Fund working
balances will be fully depleted. Our level of concern
has increased as the Council has not identified and
agreed sufficient savings plans to prevent its
forecast General Fund balance reducing to this
unacceptably low level.
The Council needs to demonstrate that it has a
realistic medium term financial plan that will deliver a
balanced and sustainable financial position in an
environment of reduced funding.
Our response
We said we would review the plans the Council has
to identify and agree the required savings plans.

The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy was
regularly updated throughout the year, in line with the
annual planning process. The updates included expected
and known changes to government funding arrangements,
spending pressures and identified savings plans.
Throughout this update process the Chief Officer (Finance
and Legal) has made realistic assessments of proposed
savings plans and only included those where he has
reasonable assurance that they will be delivered.

We have considered whether there are appropriate
arrangements in place to plan finances effectively to
support the sustainable delivery of strategic priorities and
maintain statutory functions. We have specifically
considered:
• savings planning;
• increases in unfunded spending; and
• The forecast level of General Fund balances to the end
of 2021/22.
We are satisfied that the forecast position is a realistic
assessment of the financial challenge. We concluded from
our review of a sample of 2019/20 savings scheme that
there is sufficient prudence in the recognition of cash
releasing savings.

The Council’s medium term financial outlook has improved
slightly over the last 12 months. However significant risks
However, the continued planned use of balances to close
remain in relation to the financial position and these have
been consistently and clearly communicated to Members by the financial gap only buys the Council time in which to
develop a sustainable financial strategy. In our view it is
the Chief Officer (Finance and Legal).
vital that further income growth is achieved to close the
At the time of setting the budget, the Council had been
financial
gap and ensure that the finances of the Council
unable to identify and agree a strategy to prevent its
are
sustainable
in the medium term.
forecast General Fund reducing to an unacceptably low

level by the end of 2021/22. The Council’s earmarked and In considering the 2020/21 budget options the Council
needs to give attention to ways that it can grow its income
un-earmarked general fund reserves remain much lower
than most similar councils. In addition there are significant base including the level of Council Tax increases.
risks to these forecasts that mean that the financial position
may become unsustainable at an earlier date.
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Value for Money

Key findings
We set out below our key findings against the significant risks we identified through our initial risk assessment and further risks identified through our ongoing review of documents.



Significant risk

Findings

Auditor view

Medium Term Financial Strategy
(continued)

The Council has been working for some time on a number of corporate
initiatives designed to save money including property asset management,
implementing a new digital customer service platform and
commercialisation.

We have concluded that not withstanding the
uncertainties in the Council’s medium term
financial outlook the Council has proper
arrangements for planning finances effectively to
support the sustainable delivery of strategic
priorities and maintain statutory functions.

To date these initiatives have either not delivered savings or, where
savings have been achieved, these have not been sufficient to eliminate
the underlying deficit. The Council has a very low level of spend per head
compared to other Metropolitan District Councils and it is challenging to
deliver further savings from this already low base. We note that monitoring
information provided to Cabinet on the likelihood of delivery of savings
scheme has improved in the year.
There is continuing uncertainty about Local Government funding from April
2020 when the current multi-year settlement ends. Outcomes for Fair
Funding, the possibility of a business rates ‘re-set’ and uncertainty about
changes to Social Care funding all present risk to the Council’s financial
position that needs to be effectively managed.

The main source of the Council’s revenue is local taxation. The Council has
a comparatively low level of Council Tax. It is currently the lowest of the
West Midlands Metropolitan Districts, and the second lowest of all
Metropolitan District Councils. Whereas the level of Council Tax is a matter
for the Council, it needs to consider carefully whether its major source of
income is sufficient to maintain financial sustainability in both the short and
medium term.
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Independence and ethics

Independence and ethics
We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each covered person, are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial
statements
We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.
Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical
requirements for auditors of local public bodies.
Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix D

Audit and Non-audit services
For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The following non-audit services were identified which
were charged from the beginning of the financial year to the current date as well as the threats to our independence and safeguards that have been applied to mitigate these threats.
Fees £ Threats identified

Safeguards

Certification of Housing capital
receipts grant 2018/19

3,500 Self-Interest (because
this is a recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee
for this work is £3,500 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £103,746 and in particular relative to Grant
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These
factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Housing Benefits 2018/19

16,000 Self-Interest (because
this is a recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee
for this work is £16,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £103,746 and in particular relative to Grant
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These
factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Audit related

Teachers Pensions Agency return 5,900 Self-Interest (because
(please note we have also not yet
this is a recurring fee)
audited the 2017/18 return due to
problems with return compilation)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee
for this work is £5,900 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £103,746 and in particular relative to Grant
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These
factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level

There are no non-audit related services. These services are consistent with the Council’s’ policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. All services have been approved
by the Audit and Standards Committee. None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council | 2018/19

26

Appendix A

Action plan
We have identified recommendations for the Council as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We have agreed our recommendations with management and we will
report on progress on these recommendations during the course of the 2019/20 audit. The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during the
course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing standards.

Assessment
1

2

Issue and recommendation



Accounts – valuation of Property Plant and Equipment



Value for money – Medium Term Financial Strategy

Management response

Management need to ensure that the carrying value of all land
and buildings including Council dwellings is based on a valuer’s
assessment of valuation as at 31 March, the balance sheet date.
This needs to be adequately supported by the judgements and
assumptions made by the valuer.

The continued planned use of balances to close the financial gap
only buys the Council time in which to develop a sustainable
financial strategy. In our view it is vital that further income growth
is achieved to close the financial gap and ensure that the
finances of the Council are sustainable in the medium term.
In considering the 2020/21 budget options the Council needs to
give attention to ensuring the level of Council Tax is sufficient to
maintain financial sustainability.

Controls
 High – Significant effect on control system
 Medium – Effect on control system
 Low – Best practice
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Financial Services will work closely with Council Valuers to review the timing, scope
and resources in relation to all Land and Property valuations for inclusion within the
2019/20 Statement of Accounts.

There is uncertainty about future government policy on Council Tax increases and the
limit above which a referendum is required. The current Medium Term Financial
Strategy, approved by Council on 25th February 2019, is based on increasing Council
Tax to the maximum permitted without the requirement of a referendum and assumes
that this limit is 2.99%. The Chief Officer Finance and Legal will continue to monitor
government policy on funding and Council Tax and will advise members accordingly.

Appendix A

Follow up of prior year recommendations
We identified the following issues in the audit of the Council’s 2017/18 financial statements, which resulted in four recommendations being reported in our 2017/18 Audit Findings report.
We have followed up management’s response and the results are shown below.
Assessment




Medium




Medium




Medium




Medium

Recommendation

Update on actions taken to address

Value for money – Medium Term Financial Strategy

Financial updates are provided to Cabinet at least 3 times per year. Updates are provided on
delivery of savings within the reports taken to Cabinet and Council.

Review the way savings are scrutinised and monitored at a
corporate level. This should include good practice corporate
monitoring, such as reporting on savings delivery in Cabinet
reports.
Value for money – Medium Term Financial Strategy
Give attention to how the Council can grow its income base,
both through careful consideration of the level of Council
Tax increases and income generation opportunities.
Internal Control – Journals
Review journal controls to:
-

Improve authorisation controls, particularly around
complex year end transactions

-

Fully eliminate journals with no description

IT General Controls
Progress on implementing our recommendations for
improvements is reported to the Audit and Standards
Committee.

Controls
 High – Significant effect on control system
 Medium – Effect on control system
 Low – Best practice
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The Medium Term Financial Strategy is based on the assumption of Council Tax increases
up to the maximum permitted without the requirement of a referendum. The Chief Officer
Procurement and Commercial is currently developing the Council's Commercial Strategy.

Controls have been introduced to correct the small number of journals without narration and
we will ensure that these controls are applied consistently through the year

Progress was reported to Audit and Standards Committee on the 10th December. The
recommendations for improvement have been implemented.
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Appendix C

Audit Adjustments
We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.
Impact of adjusted misstatements
All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net expenditure for the year.
Detail
1

Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement £‘000

Balance Sheet £’000

Impact on total net
expenditure £’000

McCloud judgement
The Court of Appeal has ruled that there was age discrimination in the
judges and firefighters pension schemes where transitional protections
were given to scheme members. The Government has applied to the
Supreme Court for permission to appeal but this was recently refused.
The legal ruling around age discrimination (McCloud - Court of Appeal)
has implications for other pension schemes where they have
implemented transitional arrangements on changing benefits. Barnett
Waddingham, your Actuary, have produced a new report as at the 31st
March 2019 to show the impact of the McCloud judgement on the
Council. This has lead to revisions in the accounts for the net pensions
liability as at 31 March 2019.
£15,794 Cr

Net pensions liability
Total unusable reserves
CIES/HRA

2

Expenditure classification within the Comprehensive Statement of
Income and Expenditure
Expenditure was not analysed correctly within the Comprehensive
Statement of Income and Expenditure and this has now been included.
This is a split between lines and does not affect the Gross Expenditure
total.

Overall impact
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£15,794 Dr

£15,794 Dr

£15,794 Dr

People – Other

£740 Dr

Place – Other

£704 Dr

Chief Executive – Services £1,597 Dr
Chief Executive – Corporate £3,041 Cr

£0

£0

£15,794 Dr

£0

£15,794 Dr
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Appendix C

Audit Adjustments
Misclassification and disclosure changes
The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements. In addition to
these some amendments were made for formatting and typographical errors.

Disclosure omission

Details

Note 12: External Audit Costs

The full value of external audit costs were not shown in the accounts. This has been amended to show the total cost to the
Council in 2018/19.



Note 39: PFI and Similar
Contracts

The note regarding the payments for both PFI schemes were incorrect due to a formula error within the working papers.
This has been amended and does not affect the values shown elsewhere within the accounts.



Note 33: Accounting policies

An accounting policy was added to the Council’s policies to state the basis of going concern.
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Appendix D

Fees
We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Audit Fees

£

Council Audit – fee proposed per fee letter

103,743

Fee variation
Pensions and PPE valuation - The Financial Reporting Council has highlighted that the quality of work by audit firms in respect of IAS 19 and PPE
valuations needs to improve across local government audits. Accordingly, we have increased the level of scope and coverage in respect of IAS 19 and
PPE valuations this year.
Assessing the impact of the McCloud ruling - The Government’s transitional arrangements for pensions were ruled discriminatory by the Court of Appeal
last December and the Supreme Court refused the Government’s application for permission to appeal this ruling. As part of our audit we have carried out
additional work considering the impact on the financial statements along with any audit reporting requirements.

6,000
3,000

Final fee – 2018/19 audit

£112,743

Final fee – 2017/18 audit

£137,735

The proposed fees for the year were in line with the scale fee set by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) . Our fees for grant certification cover only housing benefit
subsidy certification, which falls under the remit of Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Fees in respect of other grant work, such as reasonable assurance reports, are
shown under 'Fees for other services’.
The proposed fee variation has been discussed with the Chief Officer Finance and Legal. It is subject to approval by PSAA
Fees for other services

£

Audit related services:
Housing capital receipts 2018/19

3,500

Housing benefits 2018/19

16,000

Teachers pensions return 2018/19

5,900

Total

£25,400
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© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member
firms, as the context requires.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.
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Appendix 2

Draft audit opinion
We anticipate we will provide the Council with an unmodified audit report

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Dudley
Metropolitan Borough Council

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council (the
‘Authority’) for the year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the Movement in Reserves
Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the
Cash Flow Statement, the Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement, the

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK)
require us to report to you where:

Movement on the HRA Statement, the Collection Fund Statement and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC
code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19.
In our opinion, the financial statements:






give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2019
and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended;

the Chief Officer (Finance and Legal) use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or



the Chief Officer (Finance and Legal) has not disclosed in the financial statements any
identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s
ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least
twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice
on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19; and

Other information

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014.

The Chief Officer (Finance and Legal) is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than the
financial statements and, our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

.
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Draft audit opinion
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge of the Authority obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

We have nothing to report in this regard.



we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or



we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or



we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary
to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of,
or at the conclusion of the audit; or;

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit
Practice



we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider



we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the ‘Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016)’ published by CIPFA and SOLACE or is
misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are
not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and
controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Chief Officer (Finance and Legal) and Those
Charged with Governance for the financial statements

We have nothing to report in this regard.

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statements of Accounts ,
the Authority is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial
affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those
affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Chief Officer (Finance and Legal). The Chief Officer

Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Authority gained through our work in relation to the
Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of

(Finance and Legal) is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which
includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19,
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Chief
Officer (Finance and Legal) determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial

resources, the other information published together with the financial statements in the
Statement of Accounts for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements.
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Draft audit opinion
In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Officer (Finance and Legal) is responsible for
assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless there
is an intention by government that the services provided by the Authority will no longer be
provided.
The Audit and Standards Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those charged with
governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on
the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Conclusion
on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Responsibilities of the Authority
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and
governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be
satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we
considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard
to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in
November 2017, as to whether in all significant respects the Authority had proper
arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve
planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor
General determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit
Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Authority put in place proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31
March 2019.
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to be satisfied that the
Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources.

Conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2017, we are satisfied that the Authority put in
place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ended 31 March 2019.
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Draft audit opinion
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Dudley Metropolitan
Borough Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 and the Code of Audit Practice.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part
5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the
Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit
Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

[

Richard Percival , Key Audit Partner
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

Birmingham

July 2019
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Appendix 3

Grant Thornton UK LLP
The Colmore Building
20 Colmore Circus
Birmingham B4 6AT

29 July 2019
Dear Sirs
Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial
statements of Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council for the year ended 31 March
2019 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the Council financial
statements are presented fairly, in all material respects in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 and applicable law.
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as
we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:
Financial Statements
i.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Council’s financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2018/19 ("the Code"); in particular the financial statements are fairly
presented in accordance therewith.

ii.

We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the
Council and these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the
financial statements.

iii.

The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could
have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.
There has been no non-compliance with requirements of any regulatory
authorities that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the
event of non-compliance.

iv.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

v.

Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including
those measured at fair value, are reasonable. We are satisfied that the material
judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are soundly based,
38

in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements.
There are no other material judgements that need to be disclosed.
vi.

Except as disclosed in the financial statements:
a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent
b. none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged
c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or nonrecurring items requiring separate disclosure.

vii.

We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the
valuation of pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits
disclosures are consistent with our knowledge. We confirm that all settlements
and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for. We also
confirm that all significant post-employment benefits have been identified and
properly accounted for.

viii.

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted
for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial
Reporting Standards and the Code.

ix.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or
disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

x.

We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and
disclosures changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The
Council financial statements have been amended for these misstatements,
misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of material misstatements,
including omissions.
 [list other reasons]
The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

xi.

Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

xii.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

xiii.

We believe that the Council’s financial statements should be prepared on a going
concern basis on the grounds that current and future sources of funding or support
will be more than adequate for the Council’s needs. We believe that no further
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disclosures relating to the Council's ability to continue as a going concern need to
be made in the financial statements.
Information Provided
xiv.

We have provided you with:
a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation
of the Council financial statements such as records, documentation and other
matters;
b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your
audit; and
c. unrestricted access to persons within the Council from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

xv.

We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which
management is aware.

xvi.

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in
the financial statements.

xvii.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

xviii.

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud
that we are aware of and that affects the Council and involves:
a. management;
b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

xix.

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or
suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements communicated by employees,
former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

xx.

We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected
non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered
when preparing financial statements.

xxi.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council's related parties and all the
related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

xxii.

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose
effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement
xxiii.

We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the
Council's risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are
not aware of any significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS.
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Narrative Report
xxiv.

The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the
Council's financial and operating performance over the period covered by the
Council financial statements.
Approval
The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit
and Standards Committee at its meeting on 29 July 2019.

Yours faithfully
Name……………………………
Position………………………….
Date…………………………….
Name……………………………
Position………………………….
Date…………………………….
Signed on behalf of the Governing Body
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Agenda Item No. 6

Audit and Standards Committee – 29th July 2019
Report of the Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services
Grant Thornton - Fee Letter 2019/20

Purpose of Report
This report sets out the planned audit fee for 2019/20 by the Council’s external
auditor, Grant Thornton. Attached is their Audit fee letter and a representative
from Grant Thornton will be available at the meeting to deal with any issues.

1.

Recommendation
2.

That Members note and comment on the Grant Thornton fee letter attached to
this report.

Background

3.

Under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, oversight of audit contracts
for local government passed from the Audit Commission to Public Sector Audit
Appointments Limited (PSAA) on a transitional basis until 2017/18.

4.

From 2018/19 onwards, the Council has opted to continue to have appointments
made by PSAA. PSAA have appointed Grant Thornton UK LLP to be the
Council’s external auditors.

5.

In addition to their work on the Council’s accounts and financial systems, the
External Auditors carry out Value for Money (VFM) work and the Whole of
Government Accounts. Outline proposals for the work to be carried out and the
fees to be charged are set out below:

The Annual Audit Fee Letter 2019/20 is attached as Appendix 1. This sets out
work to be carried out in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice and in
accordance with the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited
Bodies.



The letter shows the main audit fee has been maintained at the 2018/19 level
of £103,746. All grant work from 2018/19, including housing benefit
certification, falls outside of the PSAA contract and fees are agreed separately
with external auditors.
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Finance
6.

The Council has made revenue budget provision for the annual audit fee, inspection
fees and grant audits. It is anticipated that any costs arising from the above audit
work will be met from within existing resources.

Law
7.

Legislation appertaining to Local Authority Audit and Accounts is contained in the
Local Government Act 1972, Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, and
regulations made therein.

Equality Impact
8.

The proposals take into account the Council’s Policy on Equality and Diversity.

Human Resources/Transformation
9.

There are no issues arising from this report.

Commercial Implications
10.

There are no issues arising from this report

Iain Newman
Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services
Contact Officer:

Rachel Cooper
Telephone 01384 814844
Email: rachel.cooper@dudley.gov.uk
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Appendix 1
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Agenda Item No. 7

Audit and Standards Committee – 29th July 2019
Report of the Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services
Risk Management
Purpose
1. To update members on current Corporate Risks
Recommendations

2. That this committee:
 Notes and comments on the Corporate Risks as set out in Appendix 1.
 Identifies any additional risks that it considers should form part of the
Corporate Risk list.
 Identifies a particular risk for closer scrutiny at the December meeting of this
Committee.

Background
3. This Committee requested it should receive details of Corporate Risk three times
per annum.
Corporate Risks
4. Corporate Board receives reports on Corporate Risks at least 3 times per annum
and in addition all Strategic Directors and Chief Officers continue to review risks on
a quarterly basis. Appendix 1 shows details of the latest Corporate Risks following
review by Corporate Board on 25th June 2019.
5. In addition to risks tabled in Appendix 1, this Committee may identify any additional
risks it considers should form part of the Corporate Risk list.
6. At its meeting on the 15th April 2019 this Committee agreed to scrutinise risk R.22
which relates to Vulnerable People. Accordingly, the Strategic Director for People
will present on this matter.
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Other matters relating to Risk Management
7. The Council’s risk register can be found on the system known as Spectrum Risk. To
ensure monitoring of Corporate Risks and Chief Officer Plan Risk, Directors sign off
a process known as the Risk Assurance Protocol (RAP). Details of this process are
in the Risk Management Strategy and RAPs are created and stored electronically in
Spectrum Risk.
8. Management of risk also forms part of the Council’s assurance framework, which is
integral to the Annual Governance Statement (AGS). In this regard RAP processes
and sign offs are monitored by Audit Services.
Finance
9. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.
Law
10. The Council has a statutory responsibility for managing risks as laid out in Section 4
of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (amended 2006)
Equality Impact
11. There are no equality issues arising from this report
Human Resources
12. There are no human resources issues arising from this report.
Commercial Implications
13. There are no Commercial Implications arising from this report.

Iain Newman
Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services
Contact Officer:

Sara McNally
Telephone: 01384 815346
Email: sara.mcnally@dudley.gov.uk
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Appendix One

Risk Register: Corporate Risks
Periods -->

Last
reviewed

01/01/2019 to 31/03/2019

R.14 HR Policies
09/02/17 MODERATE (8)
Owner: Iain Newman
Reviewed by Corporate Board 25th June 2019, no changes made.
Legal Challenge to HR policies e.g. Holiday
pay
A.863 Specialist legal advice and support.
Owner: Iain Newman
R.15 The Council budget
Owner: Iain Newman
The Council may be unable to set and/or
manage its budget so as to meet its
statutory obligations within the resources
available.

Annual Review of Equal Pay claim and Holiday Pay Claims scheduled for September
2019
26/07/17 MAJOR (20)
Reviewed by Corporate Board 25th June 2019, no changes made.

A.864 Financial intelligence
Owner: Rachel Cooper

Finance attend regional and national events as appropriate. We are also a member
of SIGOMA

A.866 Monitoring and forecasting of council
tax and business rates
Owner: Sean Beckett

Reviewed on a monthly basis. Council tax slightly below target; business exceeded
target.

A.869 Reports to Cabinet, Scrutiny, Audit &
Standards and Council on budgets
Owner: Iain Newman

Budget approved by Full Council 25th February 2019.

A.947 Strategy to manage numbers of
Looked After Children through partnership
and improved early intervention
Owner: Helen Ellis
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A.3181 Monitor financial stability of Better
Care Fund (various)

Control added by Corporate Board following review on 25th June.

Owner: Matt Bowsher

R.18 Information Governance
09/12/14 SIGNIFICANT (12)
Owner: Iain Newman
Reviewed by Corporate Board 25th June 2019, no changes made.
The Council may fail to; assess the
importance of information to the business
and may be unaware of the potential impact
on the organisation should the
confidentiality, integrity or availability of
information be compromised.
A.907 Maintain standards of Information
Governance and Transparency through the
Information Governance Board
Owner: Lewis Bourne

Data Management & Insight Strategy approved by Corporate Board. Governance
structures now being considered and some actions commenced.

A.908 Corporate Information Governance
Team
Owner: Iain Newman

Impact of GDPR has led to an increase in Subject Access Requests being received
by the Team and issues being referred to the Information Commissioner. Additional
self funded from Traded Service IG Officer starting June 2019.

A.909 On line Data Protection
Owner: Lewis Bourne

Identification of "crowd funded" content to provide easy to digest online GDPR/Info
Gov/Cyber Security Training. Working with consortium of LA's being progressed.

A.910 Escalation of Information
Governance issues
Owner: Iain Newman

Escalation routes for IG issues remain through CIGT, DPO and IG Board. Increase in
issues raised with the Information Commissioner to be discussed.

A.911 Action plan for compliance
Owner: Lewis Bourne

Programme of internal GDPR adequacy audits progressing. Service specific Privacy
Notices published and other areas of Action Plan concluded i.e. Breach reporting
process in place, Data Protection Impact Assessments in place. RoPA being
developed.

R.20 Welfare Reform
Owner: Iain Newman
There is a risk that various changes to
welfare and benefits systems could place

28/06/16 SIGNIFICANT (15)
Reviewed by Corporate Board 25th June 2019, no changes made.
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people at risk and increase pressures on
statutory services.
A.752 Corporate Welfare Reform Board in
place to take a strategic approach
Owner: Sean Beckett

Last board meeting was 27th February 2019 and the next is scheduled for 24th April
2019.

A.753 Increased provision for bad debt
(Housing Services) - Corporate risk action
Owner: Catherine Ludwig

Appropriate bad debt provision set within approved budgets. Outturn improved
compared to budget as arrears reducing.

A.754 Joint working with third sector and
other partners to identify & support people
affected by Welfare Reforms - Corporate
risk action
Owner: Catherine Ludwig

Ongoing, including Corporate Welfare Reform group, continued regular meetings
with DWP (jobcentre managers, service centre managers and partnership manager)
plus continued liaison with DWP.

A.755 Review housing stock to balance
supply and demand - Corporate risk action
Owner: Catherine Ludwig

Ongoing - asset management strategy and long-term budget planning continue.

A.2839 Council Tax Reduction Scheme
Review
Owner: Sean Beckett

Scheme for 2019/20 to remain as is. Focus now on scheme for April 2020. Partner
identified and agreed and modelling tool purchased.

A.3199 Strengthen Families Programme
(known nationally as Troubled Families)
enables and assists families in meeting
progress to work criteria
Owner: Helen Ellis

Control added by Corporate Board following review on 25th June.

R.21 Corporate Fraud
Owner: Iain Newman
The Council acknowledges that there is a
risk of fraud across all areas of its
operations and is working both internally
and with external partners to prevent and
reduce this risk.

15/04/15 MODERATE (8)
Reviewed by Corporate Board 25th June 2019, no changes made.
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A.1572 Anti Fraud and Corruption Plan
Owner: Graham Harrison

A report has just been delivered to Audit and Standards Committee on the work
undertaken on Fraud and Corruption during 2018. Audit and Standards Committee
have recently approved a new Fraud Action Plan.

R.22 Vulnerable People.
29/07/19 SIGNIFICANT (15)
Owner: Martin Samuels
Reviewed by Corporate Board 25th June 2019, no changes made to the risk rating.
Risk of failure to protect children and/or
adults in positions of vulnerability, due to
increasing demand, changing patterns of
abuse (e.g. child exploitation) and reducing
resources.
A.953 Improved usage of data and
intelligence to identify and address patterns
of abuse and increase the effectiveness of
Early Help
Owner: Helen Ellis
A.2555 Current referral pathway for MASH
is multi agency and Care Act compliant
Owner: Stephen Lonsdale

Localised policies in place to ensure agencies continue to make safeguarding
personal through sharing information, training staff and auditing agency case
records. In particular, this has resulted in new referral forms for safeguarding
concerns and Safeguarding Adult Reviews which are embedded and Care Act
compliant. The Safeguarding communications and engagement sub group is directly
engaged in shaping appropriate documentation for referrals and training.

A.2557 Strategic safeguarding training and
social media strategy is established.
Owner: Stephen Lonsdale

Safeguarding communications and engagement sub group involved in maximising
opportunities.

A.2567 Performance is scrutinised through
the Children's Service Improvement Board,
the Department for Education (DfE) and
Ofsted on a regular basis
Owner: Helen Ellis
R.137 Health & Safety

05/02/18 MODERATE (10)
Reviewed by Corporate Board 25th June 2019, no changes made.
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Owner: Iain Newman
Failure to have in place effective
arrangements for managing health and
safety leading to risks to Council staff,
service users and visitors to Council
premises
A.1593 Effective information, instruction and
training
Owner: Simon Reece

Health & safety management training programme in place. IOSH-accredited Safety
for Executives & Directors training programme – 2 further sessions were planned to
mop up those unable to attend earlier sessions. One session still to take place (17
April). Only 3 officers in target group will not have attended this training. This will be
reported to CO – F&L.

A.1594 Effective Planning & Implementation
Owner: Simon Reece

Corporate Health & Safety Action Plan is a regular item on CHSMG agenda. Review
scheduled to be reported to April meeting of CHSMG. Considerable development
taking place with Directorate & Divisional level action plans which are on agendas of
appropriate management team meetings. Development & progress is reported at
quarterly management group meetings.

A.1595 Effective Health & Safety
organisation
Owner: Simon Reece

Governance structure for health & safety management is in place at corporate,
directorate & divisional levels.

A.1596 Effective monitoring & auditing
Owner: Simon Reece

Quarterly monitoring of health & safety performance is included in quarterly health &
safety reports produced for management teams by CHST. New online incident
reporting system has capability of producing real time information for management.
Link to EWS to record violent incidents is now featured on system. Audit (health &
safety compliance review) programme is underway. Reports & action plans are
delivered to Divisional management teams (or school management teams) for action.

R.234 Emergency Planning
21/12/17 SIGNIFICANT (12)
Owner: Deborah Harkins
Reviewed by Corporate Board 25th June 2019, no changes made.
Failure to implement emergency planning
and business continuity arrangements will
increase the inability of the local authority to
respond and recover from incidents.
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A.2033 Develop corporate protocol and
support the implementation of emergency
evacuation procedures across all Council
operated premises
Owner: Barry Jones/Sarah Hill

Corporate Health & Safety are running a series of Emergency Incident Response
Workshops which are designed to provide building managers and lead building
officers with the necessary information for the implementation of emergency incident
response plans to protect staff and other occupants within their buildings. Further
training in the Emergency Incident Response Procedure for persons that will be
identified as ‘Incident Controllers’ will follow these workshops with input from the
West Midlands Police CTU

A.2034 Ensure elected members are
equipped to carry out responsibilities for
managing and recovering from civil
emergencies
Owner: Barry Jones/Sarah Hill

Managing & Recovering from Civil Emergencies training for Elected Members is
conducted annually and resources are available on the Members Portal. The
Leader, Cabinet Members and Shadows are invited to training/exercising events.

A.2036 Support the organisation's resilience
in meeting its business continuity
management obligations
Owner: Barry Jones/Sarah Hill

A review of the BCM Toolkit has been undertaken and areas of improvement have
been identified to support the Council’s business continuity arrangements, which
includes guidance to ensuring contracted out services have sufficient business
continuity arrangements in place. Version 2 of the BCM Toolkit was published in
January 2019. A Service Area Critical Functions Report has been developed which
identifies the critical functions determined by each Directorate and prioritises the
business activities and services for recovery. Currently exploring options of storing
BC Plans independently of the Council’s network for senior officers to access in the
event of an IT failure. The emergency planning team continue to offer a half day
table top exercise to help services evaluate effectiveness of their BC Plans.

R.242 Management Capacity
None
Owner: Kevin O’Keefe
Capacity, there is a risk that the Council's
capacity to support delivery of its priorities
or take advantage of emerging
opportunities may become insufficient. This
presents a risk that services supporting
vulnerable people fail to meet statutory
requirements, a loss of potential
regeneration investment into the borough,
increases in workforce stress, customer

MODERATE (9)
Reviewed by Corporate Board 25th June 2019, no changes made.
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dissatisfaction and diminishing political
support.
A.2084 – The Council has medium term (3
year) Chief Officer Business Plans, which
include workforce plans, designed to show
how capacity is aligned appropriately to the
delivery of statutory and priority services.
Owner: Jacqueline Branch
A.2085 There is a robust Performance
Management Framework and supporting
system embedded in the Council, managed
by the Transformation Team.
Owner: Jacqueline Branch
A.2861 Where capacity appears to be
insufficient to meet increased, new or
emerging demand, the use of interim
capacity will be considered, based upon an
assessment of the implications of failing to
address/cater for increased demand on
management capacity.
Owner: Alan Lunt
R.243 Major ICT Projects.
21/12/17 SIGNIFICANT (12)
Owner: Iain Newman
Reviewed by Corporate Board 25th June 2019, no changes made.
There is a risk that the transformation of the
Council rests on a number of significant ICT
Projects. These projects carry a risk of
failing to delivery their aims, cost overrun,
being ineffective and/or disruption to the
current business. E.g. Digital Platform and
PIMS.
A.2087 Each ICT programme is supported
by a business case, project plan, risk and
issues register, and performance is
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managed against these. Risks are
continually monitored and corrective action
taken if any develop into issues
Owner: Sandra Taylor
A.3192 Successor project - Full governance
review has been undertaken, the correct
level of programme controls are now in
place and managed by the PMO
Owner: Martin Samuels

Control added by Corporate Board following review on 25th June.

R.286 Payroll
N/A
Owner: Alan Lunt
Failure to address the actions in the internal
audit report may result in staff not being
paid or not being paid correctly

MAJOR (20)

A.2554 If necessary, the previous payroll
months would be applied, with priority
efforts concentrated on new starters and
over payments. Where required
supplementary CHAPS payments will be
made
Owner: Jayne Catley

The absence calculations for the payrolls are run individually and weekly to mitigate
the risk of a calculated payroll update provided by 30th May 2019 by Jayne Catley

A.3169 Payroll, ICT and Finance are
working closely to identify the root causes of
the issues.
Owner: Jayne Catley

Control added by Corporate Board following review on 25th June.

R.287 Payment Card Industry (PCI)
N/A
Compliance
Owner: Iain Newman
If the Council is unable to stay Payment
Card Industry Compliance ( P.C.I ) , several
risks may arise/be incurred: financial
penalties, reputational damage and the

MAJOR (16)

Reviewed by Corporate Board 25th June 2019, the rating was increased from 16 to
20.

Reviewed by Corporate Board 25th June 2019, no changes made.
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Council's approach to income collection
impeded As above risk narrative
A.2561 Specialist security consultants
commissioned to conduct a review and
provide report
Owner: Sandra Taylor

Work continues to progress well, consultants are fully engaged and working with our
teams. It is anticipated the 2 SAQ will be completed and submitted June. (ECommerce & Automated Telephone Payments). Work on the PDQs is progressing
too and it is hoped this will be available for assessment and submission mid June.
Customer not present, i.e. the taking of payments over the phone in contact centres
or contact points is likely to be September as this requires infrastructure change,
implementation of Semaphone and Civica changes.

A.2562 Icon Programme Board to review all
payment methods and revisit preferred
methods of taking payments
Owner: Rachel Cooper

External assessor engaged and working closely with IT. Technical solutions are
being explored

R.288 Multi Speciality Care Provider
10/12/18 SIGNIFICANT (12)
(MCP)
Reviewed by Corporate Board 25th June 2019, no changes made.
Owner: Martin Samuels
There is a risk that the MCP will be delayed
or not take place at all due to changes in
national policy or current challenges in the
local NHS system. This would result in
reputational and financial issues and
threaten the delivery of existing MTFS
savings
A.2564 Council involvement in
procurement, mobilisation and assurance
processes, underway. Chief Officer,
Finance & Legal attend MCP Procurement
Board
Owner: Deborah Harkins
A.2565 Development of contingency plan
for alternative integration of service
Owner: Deborah Harkins
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A.2868 Dudley Council to engage with
Government, NHSE and respond to
consultations to raise awareness of benefits
of the MCP for Dudley residents
Owner: Deborah Harkins
R.306 Brexit
15/04/19 MAJOR (16)
Owner: Alan Lunt
Reviewed by Corporate Board 25th June 2019, rating increased from 12 to 16.
There is a risk that various changes to
Economic, procurement and environmental
policies as a result of Brexit could place
pressure on the Council’s capability to
effectively deliver adequate services and /
or address significant increases in demand
A.3180 The Council will continue to monitor
the social care workforce via the annual
National Minimum Dataset and will
workforce plan in partnership with Black
Country Authorities to mitigate the potential
impact of a decreased workforce
Owner: Matt Bowsher

Control added by Corporate Board following review on 25th June.

A.2859 Deputy Chief Executive chairs a
Corporate Brexit Group tasked with
determining the impact of Brexit (either as
agreed with the EU or No Deal) on the
Council and to put in place measures to
mitigate the impact on services
Owner: Alan Lunt

Dudley Brexit Risk Register contains all issues highlighted through discussion in the
Brexit Group. Ongoing monitoring of key issues through Brexit group, thematic leads
aligned through WMCA and Local Resilience Forum. Weekly reporting of issues (by
exception) via Chief Exec led regional groups, likewise LRF reporting.
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Agenda Item No. 8
Audit and Standards Committee - 29th July 2019
Report of the Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services
Review of the Code of Corporate Governance
Purpose of the Report
1.

To inform Members of the results of a review of the Code of Corporate
Governance.

2.

To ask Members to approve a revised Code of Corporate Governance.

Recommendation
3.

That Members note and comment on the content of this report and approve
the revised Code of Corporate Governance.

4.

That Members authorise the Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services to
undertake the necessary action to incorporate the revised Code into the
Constitution.

Background
5.

The Audit and Standards Committee has responsibility for corporate
governance and the review of the local code of corporate governance.

6.

The Chartered lnstitute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the
Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) produce the framework
for reviewing governance: “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government
2016”

7.

The overall aim of the Framework is to ensure:




8.

Resources are directed in accordance with agreed policy and
according to priorities,
There is a sound and inclusive decision making,
There is clear accountability for the use of those resources in order to
achieve desired outcomes for service users and communities.

Local authorities are encouraged to review their existing governance
arrangements against the principles and sub-principles for good governance
detailed within the Framework and accompanying guidance. The Framework
is not intended to be prescriptive and authorities are requested to consider the
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contents of the Framework in a way that reflects their structure, type, functions
and size.
9.

The Council has experienced a period of significant change and there is
further significant change to come, so it is important for Officers and Members
to ensure that the governance framework remains “fit for purpose”.

10. The Council has a number of initiatives to promote governance including:




A publication “Good Governance Is Everyone’s Business” that has been
promoted to Officers and Members,
Governance induction training is offered to new Members of the Audit
and Standards Committee,
An online training course on governance.

11. The Head of Audit Services has carried out a review of the Council’s
governance arrangements against the principles and sub-principles of good
governance included in the 2016 Framework in conjunction with a number of
senior managers from the Council. The resulting updated Code of Corporate
Governance was then discussed with Corporate Board. The Council’s
updated Code of Corporate Governance is included in Appendix A.

Finance
12. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

Law
13. There is no statutory requirement for the Council to produce a Code of
Corporate Governance.
14. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to
produce an Annual Governance Statement.

Equality Impact
15. The adoption of a Code of Corporate Governance is one part of the
Council’s commitment to fair treatment for all.
16. Children and young people were not consulted on, or involved, with the
preparation of this report.

Human Resources/Transformation
17. There are no human resources/service transformation implications arising
from this report.
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Commercial Implications
18. There are no commercial considerations relating to this report.

Iain Newman
Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services
Contact Officer : Graham Harrison
Email : Graham.Harrison@dudley.gov.uk
List of Background Papers
CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework
and Guidance Notes 2016
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APPENDIX A

Code of Corporate
Governance
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Introduction
The latest framework for good governance was produced by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives
(SOLACE) in 2016. Dudley issues its own Code of Corporate Governance based around the
CIPFA/SOLACE model.
Corporate Governance is defined by CIPFA/SOLACE as comprising the arrangements
(including political, economic, social, environmental, administrative, legal and other
administrative arrangements) put in place to ensure that the intended outcomes for
stakeholders are defined and achieved.
The framework aims to help local government take responsibility for developing and shaping
an informed approach to governance; to achieve the highest standards in a measured and
proportionate way. The overall aim is to ensure that:




Resources are directed in accordance with agreed policy and according to priorities,
There is sound and inclusive decision making,
There is clear accountability for the use of those resources in order to achieve
desired outcomes for services users and communities.

The governance framework is based around seven core principles of good governance. The
seven core principles are listed below with an outline of how Dudley is addressing these
principles.
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CORE PRINCIPLE 1: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Local government organisations are accountable not only for how much they spend, but
also for how they use the resources under their stewardship. This includes
accountability for outputs, both positive and negative, and for the outcomes they have
achieved. In addition, they have an overarching responsibility to serve the public interest
in adhering to the requirements of legislation and government policies. It is essential
that, as a whole, they can demonstrate the appropriateness of all their actions across all
activities and have mechanisms in place to encourage and enforce adherence to ethical
values and to respect the rule of law.
Sub-principle: Behaving with Integrity
Evidenced by:
 The Council’s Constitution contains Codes of Conduct for both Members and
Officers to ensure that high standards of conduct are maintained. The Codes of
Conduct include requirements relating to the declaration of interest and the
receipt of gifts and hospitality.
 The Employees Code of Conduct is brought to the attention of all new starters to
the Council and forms part of the induction process. All employees are now
required to electronically accept the Code.
 It is a mandatory requirement that all Members of the Council receive training
from the Monitoring Officer on the Code of Conduct. This includes Member
conduct, declaring interests and equality duties.
 Those Members who attend regulatory committees are required to attend
mandatory training on a biennial basis.
 Each Chief Officer maintains a gifts and hospitality register for their staff.
Member declared interests are shown on the Council’s website.
 Protocol on Member/Officer Relations forms part of the Council’s Constitution and
is currently being reviewed.
 Code of Practice for Members and Officers dealing with planning matters and
Developer Selection Protocol forms part of the Council’s Constitution.
 The Constitution sets out the Council’s decision making framework, clearly
detailing decisions to be taken by Full Council, Cabinet, Committees, Cabinet
Members and Senior Officers.
 Each Committee Agenda asks for any declarations of interest under the
Members’ Code of Conduct and any declarations would be recorded within the
minutes. The agendas and minutes are available on the Council’s website.
Sub-principle: Demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values
Evidenced by:
 The Council has developed a “Values and Behaviour Framework” to demonstrate
how behaviour and decision making can help achieve its vision.
 The values and behaviours framework has been embedded in the Strategic
Leadership Charter, Member and Officer Charters, Council Vision, Employee
Survey, My Annual Review, Coaching Strategy, Engagement Strategy, Learning
Provision and Leadership and Management Development.
 Training sessions have been delivered to Managers on the values and behaviours
framework. Managers have been told to cascade the framework to their teams.
 Proper standards of behaviour are set out within Contracts Standing Orders and
Financial Regulations which ensure that systems and processes for financial
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CORE PRINCIPLE 1: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
















administration, financial control and the safeguarding of resources are in place.
These are monitored by Internal Audit and reported upon as part of audit work.
The Council has an Equality Strategy 2016-19, which is currently under review.
To support the delivery of the strategy the Corporate Equality and Diversity
Leadership Group have produced and monitor an action plan.
An online course on governance has been produced and made available to all
Officers and Members.
Leaflet produced on “Good governance is everyone’s business” and promoted to
Officers and Members.
The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed on an annual basis and a report
is taken to Audit and Standards Committee.
Posters are displayed throughout the Council promoting the Whisteblowing Policy
and who to contact. A clause on whistleblowing is included in the Council’s
standard terms and conditions.
The Leader and Leaders of the opposition groups are required by the Constitution
to set an example to all Members and employees of the Council in their conduct
and the performance of their function. They will promote the Codes of Conduct,
the Protocol for Member and Officer Relationships and encourage attendance at
training courses.
The Nolan principles are discussed in the Financial Regulations on-line training
course.
The Council’s Contract Standing Orders and Corporate Procurement Manual are
underpinned by ethical considerations.
A Suppliers Code of Practice has been produced and approved by the Leader of
the Council and distributed to all suppliers for which the Council had an email
address and the top 350 irrespective of whether an email address is held. The top
350 were asked to confirm their adherence to the Code.
Clauses on Fraud and Corruption, Bribery Act, Whistleblowing and Cartels appear
in the Council’s standard terms and conditions.
Ethical procurement information, the Suppliers Code of Practice and the
Whistleblowing Policy are included on the Council’s website.
A Modern Slavery Statement and Policy has been produced and promoted via the
Council’s website. Over 1000 staff have received initial awareness training on
modern slavery and a number of other staff have received in depth training.
The Prevent Delivery Group oversee the development and implementation of the
Borough’s Prevent Delivery Plan.

Sub-principle: Respecting the rule of law
Evidenced by:
 Officer job descriptions include the requirement to follow statutory provisions and
guidance, where appropriate.
 The Constitution clearly details the responsibility for Members and Officers to
follow statutory provisions.
 Statutory responsibility is covered by the Members’ Code of Conduct and
associated training/guidance to Members from the Monitoring Officer.
 The Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services complies with CIPFA’s Statement
on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (CIPFA, 2015).
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CORE PRINCIPLE 1: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law










The Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer are permanent members of
Corporate Board and have access to all information and have the right to attend
any meetings.
Members receive training to assist with decision making, particularly for quasi
judicial committees.
The Council maintains records of legal advice provided by officers.
The Council has an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy that is regularly reviewed.
There are also fraud resources contained on the Council’s intranet site including
online training.
The Council has a Corporate Fraud Manager who has the ability to undertake in
depth investigations and prepare cases for criminal prosecution.
A Fraud hotline is available to Officers, Members, Contractors and members of
the public.
An Annual Fraud Report is presented to Audit and Standards Committee which
details work undertaken in relation to fraud.
Fraud and corruption assessments against good practice guidance are presented
to Audit and Standards Committee.
An Annual Review of Equality is presented and discussed at Corporate Board and
Cabinet.

67

CORE PRINCIPLE 2: Ensuring openness and comprehensive
stakeholder engagement
Local government is run for the public good, organisations therefore should ensure
openness in their activities. Clear, trusted channels of communication and consultation
should be used to engage effectively with all groups of stakeholders, such as individual
citizens and service users, as well as institutional stakeholders.
Sub-principle: Openness
Evidenced by:
 The Council has relaunched its website following consultation with stakeholders
and provides access to a lot of information.
 A Freedom of Information Act publication scheme is maintained on the Council’s
website.
 All Committee reports and decision sheets/memorandums unless exempt can be
accessed by the public through the Council’s website.
 The public are entitled to attend all committee meetings unless an exempt report
is being discussed.
 A “forward plan” of items for which a decision is due to be made is published.
 A timetable of dates for submitting and distributing reports is maintained.
 Publish an annual Statement of Accounts and narrative report on the Council’s
website demonstrating the Authority’s financial position and performance.
 Regular meetings are held with relevant Lead Members to brief them on
developments in their service area and issues of concern.
 The Council has a Social Media Policy and social media is used extensively to
communicate with residents and stakeholders.
 A Council e-bulletin is issued via email to a significant number of residents.
 Facebook forums are used to engage with Borough residents.
 The Council’s ‘Your borough YOUR HOME’ magazine features news and
information and is distributed to all Borough households.
 A digital platform has been launched which allows residents to raise and track
their service requests.
 The Constitution demonstrates the Council’s commitment to an open and
accessible style of operation by Members and Officers in all dealings.
 The Constitution is reviewed on an annual basis. The Constitution sets out how
Council decisions are made and the appropriate conduct at meetings.
 The Constitution includes relevant guidance on the roles and responsibilities of
the Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer.
 Employee and Member Codes of Conduct detail the requirement to adhere to
statutory provisions and guidance.
 An Employee Survey is now embedded as an annual workforce engagement
initiative. The Employee Survey is for all staff to complete to measure the
engagement of staff and drive future workforce developments. An annual action
plan is developed each year.
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CORE PRINCIPLE 2: Ensuring openness and comprehensive
stakeholder engagement


Internal communication has been reviewed and now there are a number of
mechanisms to relay information to Council staff: Chief Executive’s blog, “Keep it
Brief” and “Directions” publications, Express Briefings and Leadership Forum.

Sub-principle: Engaging comprehensively with institutional stakeholders
Evidenced by:
 The voluntary sector meets with the Strategic Director People on a quarterly
basis.
 There is strong partnership working with the NHS through the Health and WellBeing Board. The Council are working with Dudley Clinical Commissioning Group
(CCG) to develop the Vanguard Multi-Speciality Community Provider (MCP)
model. This is a new model of care which joins up the NHS, public health, social
care and community support around the patient. Following a procurement
exercise, work is now underway to establish the new organisation and to further
develop the integrated model of care.
 The Council is the accountable body for the following statutory partnerships:
Community Safety, Children’s Safeguarding Board and Adult Safeguarding Board
and ensures appropriate governance is in place.
 There is a Dudley Business Champions Group made up of business leaders and
Council officers, focusing on delivering the five pillars of the Industrial Strategy
and also aligning activities to the priorities in the Borough Vision 2030.
 There is a Dudley Town Centre Area Programme Board that oversees projects in
Dudley Town Centre.
 Dudley MBC is part of West Midlands Combined Authority.
Sub-principle: Engaging stakeholders effectively including individual citizens and
service users
Evidenced by:
 A Corporate Communications Plan 2019-2022 is in place. The responsibility for
delivering the plan applies to all elected Members, leaders and managers in line
with our value of accountability. This is supported by a Communications Toolkit.
 Planning Services have reviewed their Statement of Community Involvement to
ensure it is reflective of current thinking and practice.
 Young people are actively engaged through the Youth Council, the UK Youth
Parliament, the Children in Care Council as well as through a range of groups
coordinated through the Children and Young People’s Alliance.
 The Council has established ten Community Forums to give local citizens a
greater say in Council affairs. These cover the groupings of electoral wards. Their
main purpose is to provide an opportunity for local issues to be discussed locally.
They involve the ward Councillors for each particular ward and are held in public.
 All significant decisions are subject to consultation with the public.
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CORE PRINCIPLE 2: Ensuring openness and comprehensive
stakeholder engagement







The “Big Question” is an annual survey of borough residents to obtain their views
on budget setting.
Feedback from residents is complemented by regular corporate “Reputation
Surveys”. The purpose of the survey is to gain public opinion on how the Council
are delivering local services with the aim of further improving services. The
consultation is in the form of a telephone survey to a sample of 250 residents per
quarter.
Housing Services engage with tenants through the Tenants and Residents
Associations, High Rise Living Forum, Dudley Federation of Tenants and
Residents Associations (DFTRA) and Dudley’s Housing Board, which is a
community based scrutiny and oversight body for Housing Services.
The Council attends or facilitates many groups involving residents or service
users.
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CORE PRINCIPLE 3: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable
economic, social and environmental benefits.
The long-term nature and impact of many of local government’s responsibilities mean
that it should define and plan outcomes and that these should be sustainable. Decisions
should further the organisation’s purpose, contribute to intended benefits and outcomes,
and remain within the limits of authority and resources. Input from all groups of
stakeholders, including citizens, service users, and institutional stakeholders, is vital to
the success of this process and in balancing competing demands when determining
priorities for the finite resources available.
Sub-principle: Defining Outcomes
Evidenced by:
 The Authority’s vision involves putting local people at the heart of everything it
does and endeavours to:
- Enable the community to influence Council decisions,
- Provide flexible and responsive services delivered in the community,
- Deliver services in partnership with the community,
- Help the community to help itself.
 The Council Plan 2019 to 2022 has three priorities, which will be supported by its
work as One Council, building a dynamic and sustainable organisation:
- Stronger and safer communities,
- A cleaner greener place,
- Growing the economy and creating jobs.
 Future Dudley 2030 (Council Strategy) sets out an ambitious transformation
programme over the next 10 years. The programme is currently being scoped,
and will replace the existing Transformation for the Future Programme. It is
proposed that Future Dudley 2030 will be split into five work streams:
- Future Communities
- Future Economy
- Future Workforce
- Future Technology
- Future Facilities
 The Organisational Development Strategy and Organisational Development
Delivery Plan will be revised to support the new transformation programme. The
transformation programme is monitored by the Transformation and Delivery
Board.
 A Borough Vision 2030 ‘Forging a Future for All’ has been produced in
conjunction with partners. An Action Plan to deliver on the Vision is currently
being produced. In 2030 Dudley borough wants to be:
- An affordable and attractive place to live with a green network of high quality
parks, waterways and nature reserves that are valued by local people and
visitors,
- A place where everybody has the education and skills they need, and where
outstanding local schools, colleges and universities secure excellent results
for their learners,
- A place of healthy, resilient, safe communities with high aspirations and the
ability to shape their own future,
- Better connected with high quality and affordable transport, combining road,
tram, rail, and new cycling and walking infrastructure,
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CORE PRINCIPLE 3: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable
economic, social and environmental benefits.
-






Renowned as home to a host of innovative and prosperous businesses,
operating in high quality locations with space to grow, sustainable energy
supplies and investing in their workforce,
A place to visit and enjoy that drives opportunity, contributing to its ambitious
future while celebrating its pioneering past,
Full of vibrant towns and neighbourhoods offering a new mix of leisure, faith,
cultural, residential and shopping uses.

Dudley Borough Forging the Future Executive has been established to stimulate,
champion and lead programmes of action to contribute to the achievement of
Dudley Borough’s vision for the future.
A Commercial Strategy has been produced.
Publish quarterly and annual performance reports on the website.
Publish annual report and account on adult social care services, which provides
an assessment of how the Council has performed as a provider and
commissioner of adult social care as well as identifying areas for further focus.

Sub-principle: Sustaining economic, social and environmental benefits
Evidenced by:
 The corporate reporting template requires consideration of environmental and
sustainability factors.
 Corporate Board has set up a Corporate Energy Management function which has
a programme of work to improve Council’s energy and environmental
performance on sustainable development. A Corporate Energy Strategy has
been produced.
 A Corporate Estate Strategy (2017-2022) has been produced that includes capital
investment and disposals. The Corporate Estate Strategy will ultimately deliver a
“core” of operational buildings and sites that are fit for purpose. It will also realise
savings, generate new revenue income and deliver efficiencies through working
differently and collaborating with partners in the context of the Council’s land and
property base.
 The Corporate Estate Strategy is delivered via the Corporate Landlord Services
Plan.
 The Council operates a Development Co-Ordination Group, which discusses
property acquisition and disposals.
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CORE PRINCIPLE 4: Determining the interventions necessary to
optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes
Local government achieves its intended outcomes by providing a mixture of legal,
regulatory, and practical interventions (courses of action). Determining the right mix of
these courses of action is a critically important strategic choice that local government
has to make to ensure intended outcomes are achieved. They need robust decisionmaking mechanisms to ensure that their defined outcomes can be achieved in a way
that provides the best trade-off between the various types of resource inputs while still
enabling effective and efficient operations. Decisions made need to be reviewed
frequently to ensure that achievement of outcomes is optimised.
Sub-principle: Determining and Planning interventions
Evidenced by:
 The Council Plan 2019-2022 includes details of how each part of the Council will
contribute to the delivery of the Council’s priorities.
 The Council Plan is supported by Chief Officer plans that provide more detailed
information on the service actions the Council are taking to deliver its priorities.
The plans have a three year focus and are reviewed annually in support of the
Council Plan.
 There are agreed templates in place for producing committee reports and
decision sheets. These templates require the law in relation to the decision to be
detailed and the impact on equality. Within the Committee report/decision sheet
the benefits of the proposed course of action and the risks in relation to it should
also be clearly explained.
 Members are encouraged to discuss with officers the information they require in
order to make decisions.
 Democratic Services have provided training to Senior Managers on how
committee reports and decision sheets should be completed and have
emphasised that the corporate standard must be followed. Training has also been
provided on the process to get committee reports and decision sheets agreed and
published.
 There are timetables in place for producing the Council Plan, Chief Officer Plans
and annual budget.

Sub-principle: Optimising achievement of intended outcomes
Evidenced by:
 The Medium Term Financial Strategy balances service priorities, affordability and
other resource constraints.
 The Council is developing a Social Value Charter.
 Training has been provided to Officers on social value.
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PRINCIPLE 5: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the
capability of its leadership and the individuals within it
Local government needs appropriate structures and leadership, as well as people with
the right skills, appropriate qualifications and mindset, to operate efficiently and
effectively and achieve intended outcomes within the specified periods. A local
government organisation must ensure that it has both the capacity to fulfil its own
mandate and to make certain that there are policies in place to guarantee that its
management has the operational capacity for the organisation as a whole. Because
both individuals and the environment in which an organisation operates will change over
time, there will be a continuous need to develop its capacity as well as the skills and
experience of individual staff members. Leadership in local government is strengthened
by the participation of people with many different types of backgrounds, reflecting the
structure and diversity of communities.
Sub-principle: Developing the entity’s capacity
Evidenced by:
 All officers are required to have a My Annual Review (performance and
development review meeting) which takes account of the Council’s Values and
Behaviours Framework.
 A Members’ induction programme is in place, which is open to all Members to
attend.
 Some training is mandatory for all Members to attend.
 Political groups are responsible for undertaking reviews of Members’ skills.
 The Council have developed a training and development programme for all
members, including Cabinet Members, which is subject to review.
 Local Government Association have provided training on scrutiny and chairing
meetings.
 A Councillors’ Guide has been prepared, that provides the key information a
Councillor needs to be aware of.
 Members are encouraged to attend events run by the Local Government
Association (LGA).
Sub-principle: Developing the capability of the entity’s leadership and other
individuals
Evidenced by:
 The Cabinet and Corporate Board review succession planning.
 A Workforce Planning Toolkit has been produced, which is currently being rolled
out (delivery stage).
 Workforce Planning is integral to the Council’s business planning process and
seeks to maximise capacity through ensuring that the right people, are in the right
place, at the right time, with the right skills and qualifications, and where new
appointments are made, they demonstrate a commitment to the Council’s values
and behaviours framework.
 Training programmes are run for different tiers of management.
 Leadership Forum meetings of the Council’s senior managers take place four
times a year and is a forum for cascading key information.
 The role of the Chief Executive and Leader have been clearly defined within the
Council’s Constitution.
 Citizen rights are set out in Article 3 of the Constitution. Some of these are legal
rights, whilst others depend on the Council’s own processes.
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PRINCIPLE 5: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the
capability of its leadership and the individuals within it




A Local Government Association Corporate Peer Review took place in March
2017 and the Council are implementing an Action Plan.
The Council has a Recruitment and Selection Policy and a suite of HR policies
and procedures, which are regularly reviewed.
The Council has approved a Pay Policy Statement to clarify the Council’s
strategic stance on pay in order to provide direction for Members and Officers
making detailed decisions on pay and to provide the citizens of Dudley with a
clear statement of the principles underpinning decisions on the use of public
funds. The Pay Policy Statement sits alongside the Pay Arrangements Policy
which sets out the Council’s approach to pay and reward, including temporary
payments for additional responsibilities and temporary market forces supplement
payments.
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CORE PRINCIPLE 6: Managing risks and performance through robust
internal control and strong public financial management
Local government needs to ensure that the organisations and governance structures
that it oversees have implemented, and can sustain, an effective performance
management system that facilitates effective and efficient delivery of planned services.
Risk management and internal control are important and integral parts of a performance
management system and are crucial to the achievement of outcomes. Risk should be
considered and addressed as part of all decision making activities.
A strong system of financial management is essential for the implementation of policies
and the achievement of intended outcomes, as it will enforce financial discipline,
strategic allocation of resources, efficient service delivery and accountability.
It is also essential that a culture and structure for scrutiny are in place as a key part of
accountable decision making, policy making and review. A positive working culture that
accepts, promotes and encourages constructive challenge is critical to successful
scrutiny and successful service delivery. Importantly, this culture does not happen
automatically, it requires repeated public commitment from those in authority
Sub-principle: Managing Risks
Evidenced by:
 A Risk Management Strategy is in place that is reviewed and approved by the
Audit and Standards Committee.
 The Risk Management Strategy states that risk identification and analysis should
be undertaken at the earliest opportunity in the business processes and should be
forward thinking as well as reflective.
 The Risk Management Strategy emphasises the importance of assigning
ownership of risks and mitigating actions.
 Corporate Risks are reported to Corporate Board and Audit and Standards
Committee three times a year.
 Chief Officers are required to complete a quarterly risk assurance protocol to
confirm that risks are being managed.
 Key risks in relation to proposed decisions should be detailed in all Committee
reports, where appropriate.
 Training is provided to Members and Officers on risk management on request.
Sub-principle: Managing Performance
Evidenced by:
 Corporate Performance is monitored by Management, Corporate Board and
Corporate Scrutiny Committee each quarter. Each Division will have a number of
actions and performance indicators that they monitor.
 Actively challenging unacceptable performance.
 Benchmarking is used to evaluate performance and for the setting of targets.
 A specialist project management system has been purchased (Verto) that
provides more structure, consistency and governance over the Council’s projects.
 The Council has a Corporate Customer Feedback Procedure that covers
Compliments, Comments and Complaints.
 A Corporate Customer Feedback Group is held to monitor customer feedback
and ensure learning takes place.
 A Corporate Workforce Analytics Report is presented to Corporate Board on a
quarterly basis. This provides information on the workforce and whether key
Human Resource indicators are being achieved.
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CORE PRINCIPLE 6: Managing risks and performance through robust
internal control and strong public financial management
Sub-principle: Robust Internal Control
Evidenced by:
 The Council operates Scrutiny Committees which undertake "in depth scrutiny
investigations/enquiries and contribute to policy development in respect of
issues/items falling within their terms of reference". The terms of reference of the
four Scrutiny Committees cover all of the Council's executive functions.
 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board approves and monitors the
Annual Scrutiny Programme and co-ordinates the work of the various Scrutiny
Committees. Scrutiny Committees have considerable flexibility to amend the
Annual Scrutiny Programme to reflect developments during the year.
 Individual Scrutiny Committees will carry out investigations into any decisions of
the Cabinet, Cabinet Members, the Chief Executive or Strategic Directors/Chief
Officers that are called in for scrutiny in accordance with the Scrutiny Committee
Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of the Constitution.
 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board report annually to the Full Council
with details of Scrutiny Committee activities and annual work programme. Minutes
of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board and Scrutiny Committees are
submitted to Full Council to increase transparency. The Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board Annual Report for 2018/19 is available on the Council’s
website and sets out the key issues considered and the outcomes of scrutiny
work during the year.
 The Council has appointed the Democratic Services Manager as "Scrutiny
Officer" pursuant to Section 9FB of the Local Government Act 2000.The role of
this Officer is to promote the role of the Authority's Overview and Scrutiny
Committees, to provide support to the Authority's Overview and Scrutiny
Committees and to provide support and guidance to Members and Officers in
relation to the functions of the Authority's Overview and Scrutiny Committees.
 All Scrutiny Committee agendas include a "Public Forum" to encourage greater
public involvement in the Council's work.
 Meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board are programmed in
the Council calendar to broadly coincide with the dates of Cabinet meetings. This
enables the Board to monitor key executive decisions contained in the Forward
Plan.
Sub-principle: Managing Data
Evidenced by:
 The Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services is the Senior Information Risk
Officer.
 The Council has appointed a Data Protection Officer and reviewed his reporting
lines in order to provide the required independence that his position requires.
 The Council has an Information Governance Board that is attended by senior
representatives from each directorate.
 All Officers are required to undertake mandatory information governance training.
 Members are provided with training on information governance.
 The Council has a suite of Information Governance policies and procedures.
 There are detailed policies in place on data sharing and data quality.
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CORE PRINCIPLE 6: Managing risks and performance through robust
internal control and strong public financial management


The Information Governance Team maintains a data sharing register (data
processing agreements/data exchange agreements/third party access
agreements).
Sub-principle: Strong Public Financial Management
Evidenced by:
 The Council has established a robust financial management regime. Reports on
budgetary management are provided to all levels of Management and discussed
at a number of Member Committees.
 Regular financial monitoring reports to Cabinet and Council to assist in decision
making and effective stewardship of public funds.
 The Council has a rolling Capital Programme which sets out detailed Capital
Investment plans for each Directorate funded from a number of sources. This is
supported by a Capital Investment and Disposal Guide.
 The Constitution sets out the Financial Management Regime, which includes
Contract Standing Orders and Financial Regulations.
 The Council complies with the CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance and
reports to Members, where necessary.
 Adopted CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management as integral part of the
Treasury Strategy, which is approved by Members.
 Robust financial management is an integral part of the Council’s transformation
programme.
 The Medium Term Financial Strategy takes account of the full cost of delivering
services over the medium term.
 The Council consults extensively on its budget proposals.
 Financial Regulations and Codes of Practice have been published. Financial
Regulations are currently being reviewed to ensure they remain “fit for purpose”.
 Financial Regulations are supported by online training that is available for
Members and Officers to complete.
 An employee suggestion scheme has been established to try and identify
innovative change proposals and to deliver savings and efficiencies.
 Publish Contract Standing Orders and a Corporate Procurement Manual.
Contract Standing Orders are currently being reviewed.
 Co-ordinate and develop mechanisms for the effective engagement of
clients/service users in all commissioning activity.
 Standard contract terms and conditions are in place.
 Each directorate has a schedule of authorised officers for making contract related
decisions.
 The Council operates a Procurement Champions’ Group to discuss procurement
related issues.
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CORE PRINCIPLE 7 : Implementing good practices in transparency,
reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability
Accountability is about ensuring that those making decisions and delivering services are
answerable for them. Effective accountability is concerned not only with reporting on
actions completed, but also ensuring that stakeholders are able to understand and
respond as the organisation plans and carries out its activities in a transparent manner.
Both external and internal audit contribute to effective accountability.
Sub-principle: Implementing good practices in transparency and reporting
Evidenced by:
 All individual items of expenditure over £500 are displayed on the Council’s
website.
 The Council are working towards complying with the Local Government
Transparency Code 2015.
 An annual Pay Policy Statement is produced for each financial year and approved
by a resolution of Full Council. The policy statement is published on the Council’s
website.
 The annual Statement of Accounts is published on the Council’s website.
 Audit and Standards Committee approve the Certified Statement of Accounts.
 The Statement of Accounts is prepared in accordance with published
requirements.
 An Annual Governance Statement is compiled in accordance with the CIPFA
publication “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government”. This is approved
by the Audit and Standards Committee and signed by the Chief Executive and the
Leader of the Council and published as part of the Statement of Accounts.
 The Annual Governance Statement discusses the effectiveness of the Council’s
governance framework and identifies any areas of significant concern.
Sub-principle: Assurance and effective accountability
Evidenced by:
 The Audit and Standards Committee comprises nine elected members which are
appointed by Full Council. No Cabinet Members will be appointed to serve on the
Committee.
 The Audit and Standards Committee operates to an agreed terms of reference.
The terms of reference has been reviewed in light of the CIPFA publication “Audit
Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police”.
 The Audit and Standards Committee has responsibility for the system of internal
control, both financial and otherwise.
 Regular assessments are undertaken of Audit and Standards Committee’s
effectiveness against good practice guidance.
 The skills of Members that serve on the Audit and Standards Committee are
assessed to identify any training needs.
 New Members to the Audit and Standards Committee are offered induction
training.
 The effectiveness of internal audit and the adequacy of internal audit resources
are monitored by Audit and Standards Committee.
 Recommendations for corrective action made by external audit are reported to
Audit and Standards Committee and they ensure that appropriate action is taken.
 Internal Audit risk based plans are approved by Audit and Standards Committee.
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CORE PRINCIPLE 7 : Implementing good practices in transparency,
reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability




Progress reports on the delivery of the Internal Audit Plan are presented to Audit
and Standards Committee.
The Head of Audit Services provides an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Council’s governance, risk management and internal control, which is then used
in the production of the Annual Governance Statement.
Internal Audit has been externally assessed as meeting the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards. The Head of Audit Services complies with the key requirements
of CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit.
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Agenda Item No. 9
Audit & Standards Committee – 29th July 2019
Report of the Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services
Annual Governance Statement
Purpose of the Report
1.

This report presents the Council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for
2018/19 which is required to be included as part of the annual accounts and
details how the Council has complied with its local Code of Corporate Governance,
the effectiveness of its governance framework and describes any governance
issues and how they will be addressed.

Recommendations
2.

The Committee is recommended to approve the Annual Governance Statement as
set out at Appendix A and refer it to the Leader of the Council and Chief
Executive for signature.

Background
3.

The international framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector 2014 defined
governance as “comprising the arrangements put in place to ensure that the
intended outcomes for stakeholders are defined and achieved”. Members and
officers must try to achieve the organisation’s objectives whilst acting in the public
interest at all times.

4.

The requirement to produce an AGS is contained in the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015, and guidance is provided by the Society of Local Authority Chief
Executives (SOLACE) and the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA). The AGS encompasses all aspects of governance.

5.

CIPFA/SOLACE carried out a fundamental review of their guidance during 2016
and issued “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016”.
This provided updated guidance on what should be considered when the local
code of corporate governance is produced and also on producing an Annual
Governance Statement. The Framework defines the principles that should
underpin the governance of each local authority, which are:



Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values,
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement,
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Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and
environmental benefits,
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the
intended outcomes,
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership
and the individuals within it,
Managing the risks and performance through robust internal controls and
strong public financial management,
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver
effective accountability.

6.

The overall aim is to ensure resources are directed in accordance with agreed
policy and according to priorities, that there is sound decision making and that
there is clear accountability for the use of those resources in order to achieve
desired outcomes for service users and communities.

7.

The Council carried out a self assessment against the Principles and SubPrinciples within the updated framework and have reported on a revised Code of
Corporate Governance to this Committee meeting. The AGS is constructed around
these principles.

8.

The Framework states that the annual governance statement should include the
following:






An acknowledgement of responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound
system of governance,
Reference to and assessment of the effectiveness of key elements of the
governance framework,
An assessment as to whether the governance arrangements continue to be
“fit for purpose”,
An action plan to show how identified significant governance issues are to
be taken forward,
Reference to how issues raised in the previous year’s statement have been
addressed.

9.

The Framework also requires that the AGS is approved at a meeting of a
committee with a remit including audit or governance and signed by the Chief
Executive and Leader of the Council. It should then be included within the
Council’s Statement of Accounts.

10.

The guidance does not set out a definitive way of producing the AGS. The
approach adopted at Dudley has been as follows:


Reviewed the assessment against the principles and sub-principles within
“Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016” and
established how the Council determines the effectiveness of its systems
and the outcomes they are generating. The review of the assessment has
involved input from a number of Council Senior Managers,
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The purpose of the AGS was publicised to Chief Officers and they were
asked to identify any significant governance issues,
A review of key internal and external assurance reports received e.g.
Ofsted, Care Quality Commission, Local Government Ombudsman,
Reviewed compliance against a number of CIPFA best practice documents
covering different aspects of governance,
The draft Annual Governance Statement was discussed and agreed with
Corporate Board.

11.

The draft Annual Governance Statement that was published with the draft
Statement of Accounts was reviewed by External Audit. They only had minor
comments which have been incorporated into the revised document.

12.

The governance arrangements for the Council are complex including services
provided through different delivery vehicles and in partnership and therefore it is
vital that governance arrangements are regularly assessed for appropriateness
and effectiveness.

Finance
13.

This report has no direct financial implications.

Law
14.

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that the Council conduct a
review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its system of internal control and
produce an Annual Governance Statement (AGS).

Equality Impact
15.

This report does not raise any equal opportunities issues.

16.

Whilst children and young people are not directly consulted on, or involved with the
development of the AGS, it will help ensure their interests are protected.

Human Resources/Transformation
17.

There are no human resources/service transformation implications arising
from this report.
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Commercial Implications
18.

There are no commercial considerations relating to this report

Signed:

Iain Newman
Chief Officer, Finance and Legal Services
Contact Officer:

Graham Harrison
Email: Graham.Harrison@dudley.gov.uk
Telephone: 01384 815105

List of Background Papers
CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework and
Guidance Notes 2016
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APPENDIX A

Annual Governance
Statement
2018/19
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Annual Governance Statement
1.

Scope of Responsibility

1.1

Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and
that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used
economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty under
the Local Government Act 2000 to make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard
to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

1.2

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting
in place proper arrangements for the governance (including the system of
internal control) of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions,
and which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

1.3

The purpose of the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is to explain how
the Council has endeavoured to deliver good governance through the
arrangements in place, during the period covered and how the Council has
reviewed the effectiveness of these arrangements. It also meets the
requirements of Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015
which require the Council to publish an AGS in accordance with proper
practices of internal control. The proper practice is provided by the updated
CIPFA/SOLACE guidance “Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government (2016)”. The AGS covers the financial year 2018/19 and the
subsequent period up to the sign off of the 2018/19 statement of accounts
and therefore governance issues up to the date of approval of the audited
accounts need to be considered.

1.4

The AGS should be read in conjunction with the Council’s Code of Corporate
Governance which was approved by Audit and Standards Committee in July
2018.

1.5

The Code of Corporate Governance provides details of the framework the
Council has put in place to meet the principles of effective governance as
prescribed by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE)
guidance “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government”. A copy of the
Code of Corporate Governance is available on the Council’s website.

2.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

2.1

The governance framework comprises the arrangements (including political,
economic, social, environmental, administrative, legal, and other
arrangements) put in place to ensure that the intended outcomes for
stakeholders are defined and achieved. It places the attainment of
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sustainable economic, societal and environmental outcomes as a key focus
of governance structures and processes and stresses the importance of
taking account of the impact of current decisions and actions on future
generations.
2.2

Risk management and internal control are a significant part of the
governance framework and are designed to manage risk to a reasonable
level. They cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve objectives and
priorities and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The systems of risk management and internal
control are based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise
the risks to the achievement of the Council’s objectives and priorities, to
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should
they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically.

3.

The Governance Framework

3.1

Dudley MBC’s governance framework comprises our strategies, plans,
policies, procedures, systems and processes and values and behaviours
that assist us in delivering our strategic objectives/priorities and provide
services in an appropriate and cost effective way.

3.2

The Full Council is ultimately responsible for the development and
maintenance of the governance environment. Responsibility is delegated
down via the Constitution to Cabinet, other Member Committees and
Officers (See Appendix B for a description of the Council’s structure).
The key statutory positions in relation to governance are:






3.3

Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive) who must ensure that the
Council is properly organised and staffed,
Monitoring Officer (Lead for Law and Governance) who must ensure
the lawfulness and fairness of decision making,
Section 151 Officer/Chief Finance Officer (Chief Officer Finance and
Legal Services) who must ensure the lawfulness and financial
prudence of decision making and the proper administration of the
Council’s financial affairs.
Statutory Scrutiny Officer (Democratic Services Manager), who
promotes and provides support to the Council’s Overview and
Scrutiny functions and gives advice to Members and Officers on these
functions.

Key elements of the Council’s governance framework are as follows:


The cornerstone of the governance framework is the Council’s
Constitution, which sets out how the Council operates, how decisions
are made and the procedures that are followed to ensure
transparency and accountability to local people. Some of these
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processes are required by law, while others are a matter for the
Council to determine. The Council’s Constitution also contains
detailed codes and protocols, such as Contract Standing Orders
(defining how contracts must be let) and Financial Regulations
(setting out procedures and principles for proper financial
management). Key aspects of the Constitution such as the Scheme
of Delegation are reviewed at least on an annual basis to ensure they
remain “fit for purpose”,
The Council’s governance framework has been detailed in a Code of
Corporate Governance, which is reviewed on an annual basis,
In identifying and communicating the authority’s vision of its purpose
and intended outcomes for citizens and services users, the Council
engages with all parts of the community, and this includes a number
of Community Forums,
A Borough Vision produced in liaison with our partners,
The Council Plan is supported by Chief Officer Plans and by other
strategies and plans. The Council Plan has been produced in a one
page format to provide greater clarity to staff, partners and the public
about priorities,
The Council uses a Corporate Performance Management system in
measuring the quality of services for users, ensuring they are
delivered in accordance with the authority’s objectives and that they
represent the best use of resources,
A Medium Term Financial Strategy that is reviewed and updated on a
regular basis and robust revenue and capital monitoring systems,
When the Council considers involvement in significant partnerships it
ensures that robust and appropriate governance arrangements are in
place. The Council’s Internal Audit Team reviews all significant
partnerships,
Member and Employee Codes of Conduct. New Members are
provided with training on their Code of Conduct and new employees
are directed to their Code on appointment and are required annually
to accept the Code,
The Council has developed a Values and Behaviours Framework
which has been brought to the attention of Officers and Members via
training sessions, briefings and posters on display in Council offices,
A risk management framework that includes an approved risk
management strategy, the identification of key risks and mitigating
actions,
An Audit and Standards Committee that is responsible for monitoring
internal and external audit, governance, fraud and risk management,
The Council operates Scrutiny Committees which undertake in depth
scrutiny investigations/enquiries and contribute to policy development
in respect of issues/items falling within their terms of reference,
An Internal Audit Team that works to a risk based plan in order to
deliver an annual opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of
governance, risk management and control processes.
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4.

Review of Effectiveness

4.1

Internal Audit

4.1.1

Audit Services is the only internal source of independent assurance on the
adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk management and control
processes within the Council.

4.1.2

The Head of Audit Services reports to the Chief Officer Finance and Legal
Services (Section 151 Officer) who is a permanent member of Corporate
Board. He oversees the performance of the service on a day to day basis.

4.1.3

The work of internal audit is monitored by the Audit and Standards
Committee, who approve the annual audit plan and receive regular
monitoring reports.

4.1.4

The Council’s External Auditors also review the work of internal audit and
have provided the following statement:
“Overall, we have concluded that the internal audit service provides an
independent and satisfactory service to the Council and that internal audit
work contributes to an effective internal control environment. Our review of
internal audit work to date has not identified any weaknesses which impact
on our audit approach.”

4.1.5

Audit Services are required to comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS) and one of its requirements is for an external quality
assessment against the standards to be undertaken every five years. Audit
Services last assessment was undertaken in November 2014 and were
found to meet the standards. The next external quality assessment will be
undertaken during 2019/20.

4.1.6

In accordance with the PSIAS, Audit Services produce a risk based plan that
seeks to capture all significant governance, risk and control issues. After
every audit, a report is prepared that may contain actions for Management to
address. Reports receiving a “Minimal” assurance rating and all high priority
actions are followed up in accordance with a specified timescale and the
outcomes are reported back to Audit and Standards Committee.

4.1.7

The Head of Audit Services is required by Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards to deliver an annual report which contains an internal audit
opinion. The internal audit opinion must conclude on the overall adequacy
and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, risk
management and control. The annual report is to be presented to Audit and
Standards Committee in July 2019.

4.1.8

This opinion is based principally on the work carried out by Audit Services
during 2018/2019. It must be acknowledged, however, that it is not possible
to review all aspects of governance, risk management and control within a
single year. In giving the opinion it should be noted that assurance can never
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be absolute and the most that internal audit can provide is reasonable
assurance that there are no major weaknesses in the Council’s governance,
risk management and control processes. In assessing the level of assurance
the following have been taken into account:




4.1.9

All internal audit reviews undertaken for the year ending 31st March
2019,
Follow up reviews undertaken on High priority actions and audits that
have been given a “Minimal” assurance rating,
Whether any High priority actions have not been accepted by
Management,
Any other assurance opinion given by other providers that Audit
Services have relied upon.

The Head of Audit Services opinion is as follows:
“I am satisfied that sufficient assurance work has been carried out to allow
me to form a reasonable conclusion as to the adequacy and effectiveness of
Dudley MBC’s overall internal control environment and there has been no
limitations to the scope of our activity or resource constraints imposed on
Audit Services which have impacted on our ability to meet the full internal
audit needs of the Council. Taking into account what is detailed in paragraph
4.1.8, for the 12 months ended 31st March 2019, I am able to provide
“Reasonable” assurance on Dudley MBC’s framework of governance, risk
management and internal control, which is required in order to achieve the
Council’s priorities. The main concern relates to an audit of payroll
transactions, which received a “Minimal” assurance rating during 2017/18
and the follow up work undertaken has identified that insufficient progress
has been made for this assurance rating to change. There are still serious
concerns on the operation of the ICT system and there are still a large
number of issues to be addressed. Audit Services will continue to monitor
the situation during 2019/20.”

4.2

Fraud and Corruption

4.2.1

The Council has a dedicated Corporate Fraud Manager, who is a qualified
fraud investigator with many years’ experience in this area. He is responsible
for delivering against the Fraud Action Plan (which is made up of four
elements: Prevent, Detect, Investigate and Resolve) and maintaining the
fraud risk register. The Council also maintains a Housing Fraud Team.

4.2.2

Regular reports on fraud activity are presented to Audit and Standards
Committee.

4.2.3

An assessment against Fraud and Corruption best practice has been
presented and discussed at Audit and Standards Committee.

4.2.4

A Corporate Fraud Group has been established made up of officers
representing the major fraud risk areas in the Council. This group is used to
disseminate good practice and operates as a mechanism to share relevant
information.
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4.2.5

The Council takes part in the biennial National Fraud Initiative data matching
exercise. The last completed exercise (2017) identified only a very
insignificant amount of fraud and error.

4.2.6

The Annual Fraud Report details that during the period 1st January 2018 to
31st December 2018 the Corporate Fraud Manager was involved in 37
investigations of which 8 no fraud was established, 16 were in progress as at
31st December 2018 and 13 fraud/other inappropriate behaviour was
established.

4.2.7

During the period 1st January 2018 to 31st December 2018 the Housing
Fraud Team carried out investigations into 565 referrals of which 50 were
found to involve fraud.

4.2.8

The government provides notional figures to attribute to the savings made
when housing fraud has been prevented and/or properties recovered. For
each housing application fraud prevented the notional saving is £3,240 and
for each property recovered the notional saving is £18,000. There were 27
application frauds prevented and 11 properties recovered resulting in a total
notional saving to the Council of £285,480.

4.3

Risk Management

4.3.1

The Council’s risk management strategy is reviewed and approved by Audit
and Standards Committee.

4.3.2

A report on corporate risks is presented to Corporate Board and Audit and
Standards Committee three times a year. For each of these meetings, Audit
and Standards Committee select a corporate risk for discussion. This would
involve the officer responsible for the risk delivering a presentation on how
the risk is being managed, which is then open to challenge by Members.
During 2018/19 risks relating to Brexit, Multi-Speciality Care provider and
Major ICT Projects were subject to Member challenge.

4.3.3

The Council’s corporate risks were subject to ongoing review during
2018/19; the following were rated “Major” or “Significant” (there are other
risks rated “Moderate”):







The Council may be unable to set and/or manage its budget so as to
meet its statutory obligations within the resources available,
The Council may fail to assess the importance of information to the
business and may be unaware of the potential impact on the
organisation should the confidentiality, integrity or availability of
information be compromised,
There is a risk that various changes to welfare and benefits systems
could place people at risk and increase pressures on statutory
services,
Risk of failure to protect children and/or adults in positions of
vulnerability, due to increasing demand, changing patterns of abuse
(e.g. child exploitation) and reducing resources,
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There is a risk that the transformation of the Council rests on a
number of significant ICT projects. These projects carry a risk of
failing to deliver their aims, cost overrun, being ineffective and/or
disruption to the current business,
Failure to implement emergency planning and business continuity
arrangements impacting on the Council’s ability to respond and
recover from incidents,
Failure to address the Actions in the payroll transactions internal audit
report may result in staff not being paid or not being paid correctly,
If the Council is unable to stay Payment Card Industry (PCI)
Compliant, several risks may arise/be incurred: financial penalties,
reputational damage and the Council's approach to income collection
impeded,
There is a risk that the Multi-Specialty Community Provider (MCP) will
be delayed or not take place at all due to changes in national policy or
current challenges in the local NHS system. This would result in
reputational and financial issues and threaten the delivery of existing
medium term financial savings,
There is a risk that various changes to economic, procurement and
environmental policies as a result of Brexit could place pressure on
the Council’s capability to effectively deliver adequate services and /
or address significant increases in demand.

4.3.4

As part of the Council’s risk management processes Chief Officers are
required to complete a quarterly risk assurance protocol. The purpose of the
protocol is for Chief Officers to confirm that risks have been identified and
managed in accordance with the Risk Strategy.

4.3.5

Audit Services carry out regular reviews of the corporate risk management
processes. Their last review carried out as part of the 2017/18 audit plan
provided “Reasonable” assurance.

4.4

Performance Management

4.4.1

The Council Plan for 2016-2019 was agreed by Cabinet in June 2016 and
has four main priorities:





4.4.2

Growing the economy and creating jobs,
A cleaner greener place,
Stronger and safer communities and
One Council building an effective and dynamic organisation.

All priorities will be delivered within budget. A key element of delivering
within budget is the Transforming for the Future Programme which has four
strands:





Commercialisation,
Community Resilience,
One Public Estate,
Customer Connect.
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4.4.3

The Transforming for the Future Programme is monitored by the
Transformation and Delivery Board, which is attended by the Chief
Executive, Strategic Directors, and Chief Officers.

4.4.4

Since October 2017 the Council has been engaging with its partners, local
businesses, the voluntary sector and borough residents to produce a
Borough Vision. The Dudley Vision Forging a Future for All was launched in
September 2018 and is a shared vision for Dudley borough built around
seven aspirations and developed with key partners and stakeholders. The
aspirations for Dudley Borough by 2030 are:











An affordable and attractive place to live with a green network of high
quality parks, waterways and nature reserves that are valued by local
people and visitors,
A place where everybody has the education and skills they need, and
where outstanding local schools, colleges and universities secure
excellent results for their learners,
A place of healthy, resilient, safe communities with high aspirations
and the ability to shape their own future,
Better connected with high quality and affordable transport, combining
road, tram, rail, and new cycling and walking infrastructure,
Renowned as home to a host of innovative and prosperous
businesses, operating in high quality locations with space to grow,
sustainable energy supplies and investing in their workforce,
A place to visit and enjoy that drives opportunity, contributing to its
ambitious future while celebrating its pioneering past,
Full of vibrant towns and neighbourhoods offering a new mix of
leisure, faith, cultural, residential and shopping uses.

4.4.5

A Council Vision – Future Dudley 2030 is currently being produced and this
together with an updated Council Plan (2019-22) and Chief Officers plans
will link to the Borough Vision – Forging a Future for All.

4.4.6

Supporting the Council priorities are a number of outcomes and key
performance indicators. The Council Plan is supported by Chief Officer Plans
that provide more detailed information on the service actions the Council are
taking to deliver its priorities and outcomes. The plans have a three year
focus and are reviewed annually in support of the Council Plan.

4.4.7

A quarterly performance report is presented to Transformation & Delivery
Board and the Corporate Scrutiny Committee. Progress against Chief Officer
Plans is monitored at monthly divisional management team meetings.

4.4.8

The performance report for the quarter ending 31st March 2019 showed that
of the 33 Key Performance Indicators identified,19 were "On or Exceeding
Target", 4 "Met Target" and 10 were "Below Target".

4.4.9

Internal Audit reviewed Corporate Performance Management during 2018/19
and provided “Reasonable” assurance.
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4.5

Customer Engagement/Feedback

4.5.1

The Council is working to improve community resilience within its
Transforming for the Future Programme, monitored by the Transformation
and Delivery Board.

4.5.2

As part of the work to promote community resilience the Council endeavours
to:





Enable the community to influence council decisions,
Provide flexible and responsive services delivered in the community,
Deliver services in partnership with the community,
Help the community to help itself.

This requires staff and councillors to work collaboratively with local people to
tackle the issues that affect them and their communities, in order to improve
local services and build a stronger, connected and more resilient community.
Dudley MBC has some good examples of working in this way, but the aim is
to build on this practice and make this the usual way of working.
4.5.3

In order to monitor and evaluate progress a number of process measures
have been identified. Currently, a framework to determine how these
measures are to be monitored is being devised.

4.5.4

The Council engages with the community in a variety of ways and provides
many opportunities for local people to influence Council decisions; for
example through the Dudley Youth Council, Parents and Carers Forum,
Queens Cross Network, Tenants and Residents Associations, participatory
workshops/ events facilitated by the Health and Wellbeing community
development team and through ten local Community Forums. The Council is
currently exploring innovative ways, such as deliberative enquiry and
citizens’ assemblies, to engage and involve members of the public in key
projects and issues.

4.5.5

Recommendations from a comprehensive review of the Community Forums
were approved by the Cabinet in May 2017. These have resulted in a
number of improvements including joining up the forums with local Police
and Communities Together (PACT) meetings, much improved attendances
during 2018/19 and more funding allocated to community groups and
activities through forum grants.

4.5.6

Social media is one of the channels the Council used to help inform its
decision making and over the last seven years thousands of people have
shared their views through the “Big Question”, an annual survey of borough
residents as part of the Council’s budget setting. All Full Council meetings
are now broadcast live via the Council’s YouTube page.

4.5.7

Feedback from residents is complemented by regular corporate “reputation
surveys”. The purpose of the survey is to gain public opinion on how the
Council are delivering local services with the aim of further improving
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services. The consultation is in the form of a telephone survey to a sample of
250 residents per quarter.
4.5.8

A Council e-bulletin is issued on a monthly basis to 8,600 email addresses
with a further 500 people signed up to the regular business bulletins.

4.5.9

Thousands of people have also engaged with the Council through the live
Facebook forums. In January 2019 the Council held its first ever “Question
Time” live session featuring the Leader of the Council and senior
representatives from the community. The hour long session was broadcast
via Facebook and Black Country Radio with more than 6,000 views of the
video online and reaching an audience of more than 12,000 Facebook users.

4.5.10 The Council’s HOME magazine features news and information and is
published to 138,000 households, four times a year.
4.5.11 The Communications and Public Affairs Team evaluate the success of all
marketing and communication campaigns.
4.5.12 All formal customer feedback is recorded on the Council’s complaints
management system. Data about complaints is collated each quarter and
again at the end of the financial year. The data is used to monitor
performance, review how the Council responds to customer feedback and
how services can be improved. Complaints information is included in the
quarterly performance report that is presented to Corporate Board and is
discussed at a Corporate Customer Feedback Group. This group have
recently considered whether the 20 day target should be kept for complex
complaints that regularly exceed the target. A decision was made to retain
the target but to carry out further monitoring via exception reports.
4.5.13 During 2018/19 the Council received 249 statutory complaints of which 33%
were upheld. The Council received 944 corporate complaints of which 25%
were upheld.
4.5.14 The Ombudsman’s letter for 2018 indicated that they had undertaken 10
detailed investigations and upheld 60%. Dudley MBC are in the best quartile
for number of complaints received.
4.6

Scrutiny Committees

4.6.1

The Council operates Scrutiny Committees which undertake in depth
scrutiny investigations/enquiries and contribute to policy development in
respect of issues/items falling within their terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Scrutiny Committees cover all of the Council’s executive
functions.

4.6.2

The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board approves and monitors the
Annual Scrutiny Programme and co-ordinates the work of the various
Scrutiny Committees. Scrutiny Committees have considerable flexibility to
amend the Annual Scrutiny Programme to reflect developments during the
year.
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4.6.3

Individual Scrutiny Committees will carry out investigations into any
decisions of the Cabinet, Cabinet Members, the Chief Executive or Strategic
Directors/Chief Officers that are called in for scrutiny in accordance with the
Scrutiny Committee Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of the Constitution.

4.6.4

The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board report annually to the Full
Council with details of Scrutiny Committee activities and annual work
programme. Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board and
Scrutiny Committees are submitted to Full Council to increase transparency.
The Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report for 2018/19 is available on the
Council’s website and sets out the key issues considered and the outcomes
of scrutiny work during the year.

4.7

Financial Management

4.7.1

The Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services is the officer designated under
Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 to make arrangements for
the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs. A review against
the CIPFA’s statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer has been
undertaken, which found all key requirements are being met.

4.7.2

The Council’s Scrutiny Committees and the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board have a role in scrutinising the Council’s Medium Term
Financial Strategy. The Capital Monitoring Programme is reported to all
Cabinet meetings and the revenue budget is reported to Cabinet three times
per year (and may be reported more frequently on an exception basis).

4.7.3

Strategic Directors and the Chief Executive have delegated authority to
manage their budgets. They are each supported in this by a dedicated
Finance Manager and a team of qualified staff who work closely to
understand the business but are professionally accountable to the Section
151 Officer. The Council achieved a favourable variance of £3.4m against
budget for 2018/19 (including an adverse variance of £0.9m for the Place
Directorate arising mainly from pressures that have been taken into account
in setting the 2019/20 budget). Internal Audit have conducted audits of
Treasury Management, Council Tax, Business Rates, Debtors, Creditors,
Budget Management, Benefits, General Ledger and all received either
“Substantial” or “Reasonable” assurance.

4.8

Values and Behaviours/Codes of Conduct

4.8.1

To support the Council’s vision, the following values have been determined
to guide the standard of behaviour expected from Members and Officers:






Accountability,
Determination,
Empowerment and Respect,
Excellence,
Simplicity,
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Working Together.

4.8.2

These values have been promoted widely within the Council, subject of
discussions at Leadership Forum and dedicated training sessions have been
held.

4.8.3

The Council has determined that “Our values underpin everything that we do
and everything we strive to do should be driven by them”.

4.8.4

The values and behaviours framework has been embedded in the Strategic
Leadership Charter, Member and Officer Charters, Council Plan/Vision,
People Survey, My Annual Review, Coaching Strategy, Engagement
Strategy, Learning Provision and Leadership and Management
Development.

4.8.5

The Employees Code of Conduct has been updated and was launched in
January 2019 following presentation at Corporate Board and subsequent
approval at Audit and Standards Committee in December 2018.

4.9

Information Governance

4.9.1

The Information Governance Board, which includes the Senior Information
Risk Owner (SIRO) and Data Protection Officer (DPO), oversees the
operation of information governance processes in the Council. These
processes include targeted Data Protection Compliance Audits, mandatory
information governance online training, approval of policies and procedures,
reviewing learning from information security breaches and ensuring
information registers/registers of processing activities are populated, any
data breaches identified are risk assessed and managed appropriately and
Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) are completed.

4.9.2

During the year 2018/2019 there were nine Information Governance
incidents that required the involvement of the Information Commissioner’s
Office (ICO), seven Data Protection and two Freedom of Information issues.
In five of the Data Protection cases, the Information Commissioner
concluded that there had been no breach of the Data Protection Act by the
Council, one required the provision of further information to a Data Subject
and one required working with partners to resolve a CCTV installation issue.
With regards to the two Freedom of Information cases, one required the
provision of information to a requestor and the second required the Council
to comply with a Decision Notice and disclose information that had originally
been exempted from disclosure. Lessons learned from all issues identified
have been incorporated into policy and procedures which have been
subsequently communicated.

4.9.3

The Council has received Public Sector Network (PSN) Accreditation. The
PSN compliance process exists to provide the Council with:


confidence the services they use over the network will work without
problems,
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assurance that their data is protected in accordance with suppliers’
commitments,
the promise that if things do go wrong they can be quickly put right.

Holding a valid PSN compliance certificate gives the Council permission to
interact through the PSN with the government and other public sector
organisations in a specific and pre-agreed way. PSN processes are
designed to defend against common threats such as opportunistic hackers
and abuses of business processes, while remaining proportionate and
aligned with wider business goals.
4.9.4

The Council has met the requirements of the NHS Digital Data Security and
Protection Toolkit as required to be completed by public bodies that operate
an Adult Social Care or Health function.

4.9.5

The Council is currently undertaking an ISO 27001 Gap Analysis with the
view to work towards achieving ISO27001 compliance.

4.9.6

An internal audit of General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) was
undertaken during 2018/19 and provided “Reasonable” assurance.

4.10

Equalities Framework

4.10.1 The Council has approved an Equality Strategy 2016-19. The Equality
Strategy is intended to provide the equality framework in support of the
Council’s transformation programme, alongside making sure that the Council
continues to fulfil as a minimum its legal duties under the Equality Act 2010.
4.10.2 The Council’s overall equality goals are for:





equality to be at the heart of our Community Council,
equality to be everyone’s responsibility,
our communities to be strong and cohesive,
our workforce to reflect the local communities at all levels.

4.10.3 An action plan has been developed through the Council’s Corporate Equality
and Diversity Leadership Group (CEDLG) which sets out in detail what
actions will be taken to implement the strategy. The strategy and action plan
are supported by a range of policies and guidance documents. A review of
the strategy will be undertaken during 2019/20.
4.10.4 An annual review of equality is undertaken and discussed with Corporate
Board and Cabinet. This review reports on progress with implementing the
strategy and includes employment monitoring data. Employment data is also
benchmarked against other local authorities e.g. gender pay data which has
resulted in some actions being identified to help close the gap. The West
Midlands Local Authority Equality Network provides an opportunity for
informal checking of progress on equality against other regional local
authorities.
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4.11

Modern Slavery/Preventing Extremism

4.11.1 A Modern Slavery Statement and Policy were approved by Cabinet in
October 2018 and have been uploaded onto the Council’s website.
4.11.2 The Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking (MSHT) local referral pathway
has been agreed and has been ratified by the independent Adult and
Children Safeguarding Boards.
4.11.3 Work on Modern Slavery and delivering the Action Plan is overseen by the
Community Safety Partnership’s Community Cohesion Strategic Group.
4.11.4 Communications went out during October to raise public awareness of
MSHT and the Community Safety Team worked with the Police and Crime
Commissioner’s Office and the NHS on a ‘mobile van’ campaign to promote
awareness of modern slavery among communities.
4.11.5 Over 1000 staff have received initial awareness training on modern slavery
and a number of other staff have received more in depth training. In addition
awareness sessions for voluntary, community, faith and the business sector
have taken place.
4.11.6 The Council has a number of statutory responsibilities arising from the
Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015 and the United Kingdom’s Strategy
for Counter Terrorism “Contest”, which was updated in June 2018.
4.11.7 Work in respect of Preventing Extremism is taken forward through the Safe
and Sound Partnership (Dudley’s Community Safety Partnership) liaising
with Dudley Safeguarding Children Board and Dudley Safeguarding Adult
Board. The Prevent Delivery Group oversee the development and
implementation of the Borough’s Prevent Delivery Plan. The Group meets on
a quarterly basis and receive updates from the Counter Terrorism Unit to
inform their work. The Prevent Delivery Plan is a partnership plan and
developed following receipt of Dudley’s Counter Terrorism Local Profile. The
delivery plan has five objectives:







Provide a framework for safeguarding vulnerable individuals,
Support specified authorities to comply with the Prevent Duty,
Support for Educational settings to safeguard students and comply
with the Prevent Duty,
Engage with 3rd sector organisations and businesses to facilitate
safeguarding and ensure that their resources are not used to promote
extremism,
Engage with young people aged under 25 who are vulnerable to
extremism in order to provide safeguarding support.

For 2018/19 20 actions were identified to support the above objectives. As at
31st March 2019, 17 actions had been completed and 3 actions were in
progress.
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4.12

People Management

4.12.1 A Corporate Workforce Analytics Report is presented on a quarterly basis to
Transformation and Delivery Board. This provides information on the type of
staff employed, sickness absence rates, completion of My Annual Review
meetings and other key Human Resource indicators. Chief Officers receive
their own divisional report which is discussed at their management team
meetings.
4.12.2 The Employee Survey (previously People Survey) is now embedded as an
annual workforce engagement initiative. The Employee Survey is for all staff
to complete to measure the engagement of staff and drive future workforce
developments. An annual action plan is developed each year. For 2019/20
the priorities will be:





4.13

Undertaking a review of pay arrangements
Reviewing processes and policies to ensure consistency of
application
Investing in the development of our leaders, managers and wider
workforce
Improving engagement and recognition of the workforce and nurturing
staff ideas
Developing health and well-being opportunities of our staff

Audit and Standards Committee

4.13.1 An assessment against CIPFA’s Audit Committees Practical Guidance for
Local Authorities and Police has been undertaken and discussed with Audit
and Standards Committee.
4.13.2 The terms of reference for Audit and Standards Committee has been
updated to reflect good practice.
4.14

External Assurance

4.14.1 During the year a number of external reviews have been undertaken which
have contributed to the assessment of the effectiveness of governance
processes in particular: Ofsted (Children’s Services), Ofsted/Care Quality
Commission (Special Educational Needs and Disabilities) and HM
Inspectorate of Probation (Youth Offending)

5.

Update on previous issues raised and significant current/emerging
governance issues

5.1

Children’s Services

5.1.1

In April 2016 Ofsted issued a report on the inspection of services for children
in need of help and protection, children looked after and care leavers and a
review of the effectiveness of the Local Safeguarding Children Board. Their
overall opinion was Children’s services in Dudley Metropolitan Borough
Council are inadequate.
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The executive summary to the report stated:
“There are serious and widespread failures in the services provided to
children and young people who are in need of help and protection and who
are looked after in Dudley. The local authority has been aware of the deficits
for some time, but has not taken sufficiently swift or robust remedial action to
ensure that the most vulnerable children and young people are protected.
This means that senior leaders and elected members cannot be assured that
children and young people are safe or being effectively protected”.
5.1.2

Following the inspection Ofsted undertook seven monitoring visits focusing
on different aspects of the child’s journey. Feedback from the monitoring
visits was generally positive, with significant progress reported towards
addressing the failings found in the inspection. However, the challenges of
staff turnover and high caseloads were also noted.

5.1.3

The outcome of the inspection of October 2018 was positive. The inspection
report stated “Significant progress has been made in many areas of
Children’s Services in Dudley since the last inspection in 2016. Effective
work by senior management and staff, together with commitment and
investment by political leaders, has led to improved responses to the needs
of children and families”. As a result, outcomes for many children and their
families are better”. Judgements in two of the three areas: “leadership” and
“children in and leaving care” were rated "Good”, and “help and protection”
were rated “Requires Improvement”. Moving from a position of being judged
inadequate in all areas other than care leavers to one where two of the three
judgements were good was a significant achievement by the Council and its
partners.

5.1.4

One of the key factors in the improvement of Children’s Services was the
establishment of the Centre for Professional Practice. The Centre has
developed practice standards and a quality assurance framework. It also
carries out quality auditing in liaison with practitioners and is responsible for
delivering a comprehensive learning and development offer for staff to
ensure continuous professional development.

5.1.5

A recent inspection of the Youth Offending Service by HM Inspectorate of
Probation has indicated that the service is now functioning at the upper level
of ‘Requires Improvement’. Attention is still required in targeted areas,
specifically increased access to education provision, the development of an
out of court protocol and improved reviewing processes relating to risks.

5.1.6

A Local Area Special Educational Needs and Disabilities Inspection was
jointly undertaken by OFSTED and CQC towards the end of May 2019. A
draft report has been received that has confirmed much of what the service
had previously identified. Action plans are being put in place to address all
issues.
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5.2

Financial Sustainability

5.2.1

The External Auditor’s Value for Money Conclusion for 2016/17 included a
qualification in respect of financial sustainability. This qualification was
removed for 2017/18, while continuing to highlight risks to the strategy and
the need to increase the Council’s income base.

5.2.2

The Medium Term Financial Strategy approved by Council on 25th February
2019 forecasts a deficit of £4.9m in 2019/20 and £9.7m in 2020/21 and
£6.2m in 2021/22. It shows the General Fund falling to £0.5m by the end of
2021/22. The Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services, in making his report
to the Council Tax setting meeting under Section 25 of the Local
Government Act 2003 concluded as follows:
“In my professional opinion:
(a)

the estimates made for the purposes of the calculation of the
Council’s budget requirement under Section 32 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992, contained in this report, are robust,

(b)

the financial reserves that will remain available to the Council as a
result of agreeing the proposals contained in this report are adequate
to enable the setting of a lawful budget for 2019/20,

(c)

there are forecast underlying budget deficits in all future years. While
these deficits can be met from reserves over the next few years, this
is unsustainable in the longer term and members should also note the
significant risks and uncertainties listed in paragraph 60 and
elsewhere in the report. There is therefore a need to identify further
savings and/or additional income in order to ensure that prudent
balances are maintained.”

5.2.3

The Council was in a position during 2018/19 where no one party could
command a majority of the Councillors. Informal budget discussions were
held between the parties as in previous years and the budget (as amended
in relation to Environmental Services fees and unauthorised traveller
encampments) was passed unanimously at Full Council.

5.3

Information Governance (GDPR)

5.3.1

A comprehensive work programme remains in place for General Data
Protection Regulation/Data Protection Act 2018 compliance. It is recognised
that compliance is a journey, and activities towards this are ongoing coordinated by the Council’s Data Protection Officer. The foundation of the
compliance programme relies on the undertaking of targeted Data Protection
Compliance Audits for each service the Council operates, to date 120
targeted audits have been undertaken. In addition, 12 Data Protection
Impact Assessments have been undertaken and a comprehensive suite of
Privacy Notices published on the Council’s website. The Council is currently
looking to enhance its elearning for Data Protection and Cyber Security and
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has invested in new elearning content that will be implemented in
2019/2020.
5.4

Payroll Transactions

5.4.1

Internal Audit towards the end of 2017/18 highlighted a number of significant
issues with payroll transactional activity. As a result, a “Minimal” assurance
rating was given. The audit identified issues relating to the management of
overpayments, exception reporting, quality control, separation of duty,
reporting to the West Midlands Pension Fund, data quality and retention of
documentation. A follow up audit review has been undertaken and although
progress has been made to address the issues, it is considered insufficient
for the assurance rating to change.

5.5

Senior Management Changes

5.5.1

The Chief Executive, Sarah Norman, left the authority at the end of June to
take up the post of Chief Executive at Barnsley Metropolitan Borough
Council. Her replacement, Kevin O’Keefe, commenced in post on 17th June
2019 to allow a period of handover. The post of Chief Officer
(Transformation and Performance) is vacant and interim supervision
arrangements for that division are being shared between the Strategic
Director of Place and the Chief Officer (Finance and Legal Services). The
post of Chief Officer (Children’s Services) is also being covered on an
acting-up basis. Permanent arrangements for the management of these
functions will be made in due course by the new Chief Executive.

6

Future Developments

6.1

Multi-Specialty Community Provider (MCP)

6.1.1

Dudley Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is leading on a programme to
commission a new organisation (Multi-Specialty Community Provider) to
provide the borough’s new integrated care model. It will be run as a separate
legal entity initially on a ten year contract with the option to extend to fifteen
years. The procurement has been completed with a partnership of local
NHS providers (Dudley Group of Hospitals, Dudley GPs, Dudley and Walsall
Mental Health Trust and Black Country Partnership) being identified as
preferred provider, following approved by the Council’s Cabinet and the CCG
Board in July 2018. Work is now underway to establish the new organisation
and to further develop the integrated model of care.

6.1.2

Currently a number of Public Health contracts, which equates to
approximately £11.9m are in scope of the MCP. At this stage, no Adult or
Children’s Services have been agreed by the Council as in scope, however
they will be aligned to the care model where this can improve outcomes. The
Council has established the following requirements to be considered to
determine whether to transfer any additional services into the Multi-Specialty
Community Provider:
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6.1.3

Each line of investment must demonstrate a decreased cost to the
Council,
Any transfer of service must meet both regulatory and statutory
requirements,
Each transfer must demonstrate improved outcomes for the people of
Dudley,
Those outcomes will be clearly stipulated and performance data will
be tabled at both the Health and Wellbeing Board and Scrutiny
processes to account for change,
The model must be able to adapt to the overall level of funding
available to the Council in order to ensure sustainability,
Will not decrease income to the Council e.g. VAT and client
contributions.

A rigorous assurance process led by NHS regulators is underway called the
Integrated Support and Assurance Process (ISAP). This assesses whether
the procurement has been conducted properly and whether the contract is
ready to commence. The Council intends that additional assurance will be
provided through the Adult and Health Scrutiny Committee.

6.1.4. It is envisaged that the MCP will become operational on 1st April 2020.
6.2

Infrastructure Developments

6.2.1

The Council is part of the West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA) and
is directly involved in its Governance through the Chief Executive, Leader of
the Council and Opposition Leader. As well as this, the WMCA is a key
partner in the Council’s efforts to support the economic regeneration of the
Borough. Current projects include the Wednesbury to Brierley Hill Metro
Extension where the Council has worked with WMCA to ensure this vital
piece of transport infrastructure is fully funded. Future projects include the
Dudley Transport Interchange and the use of the WMCA Brownfield Land
Fund to support land remediation across Dudley to release land which can
then support our housing and employment needs.

7

Action Plan

7.1

The issues identified in Section 5 will be the subject to separate Action Plans
that will be monitored by Corporate Board, Cabinet and other Council
Groups and Committees e.g. Chief Officer Plans, Children’s Services
Medium-Term Improvement Plan, Medium Term Financial Strategy.

8.

Conclusions

8.1

Although the Council has already undertaken significant amount of work to
address the issues raised by Ofsted and by External and Internal Audit,
further work is required. These issues are the subject of detailed Action
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Plans and will be robustly monitored during 2019/20. With the exception of
these issues the Council’s governance framework remains “fit for purpose”.

P Harley

K O’Keefe

Leader of the Council

Chief Executive
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Appendix B
Dudley Council Governance Structure

Full Council
The full Council comprises all 72 elected members. It has responsibility for approving
the overall policy framework including the budget. It retains responsibility for certain
functions, however, most of its powers and duties are delegated to the Cabinet or
committees operating within the decision-making structure set out in the Constitution.
The full Council also has a key role in holding the Cabinet to account.
Cabinet
The Cabinet comprises of the Leader of the Council plus 9 other Cabinet Members
each with a defined portfolio (or areas of responsibility). The Cabinet meets
approximately every 8 weeks, chaired by the Leader of the Council. Shadow Cabinet
Members attend meetings to speak but not vote. Collectively, the Cabinet makes
decisions affecting local services and makes recommendations to the full Council on
the overall policy direction. The Cabinet has to make decisions which are in line with
the Council’s overall policies and budget. If it wishes to make a decision which is
outside the budget or policy framework, this must be referred to the Council as a
whole to decide.
Scrutiny
The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board and four other Scrutiny Committees
undertake in depth scrutiny investigations/ enquiries and contribute to policy
development in respect of issues/items falling within their terms of reference. They
submit reports and recommendations to the Cabinet and/or full Council on the
outcome of scrutiny investigations, enquiries or reviews. The Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board has a role to oversee and co-ordinate the Council’s overview
and scrutiny functions. The Board approves and monitors the Annual Scrutiny
Programme, co-ordinates the work of the various Scrutiny Committees and submits
an Annual Report to Full Council.
Statutory and Regulatory Committees
The Council will appoint the following committees to discharge the functions
indicated:

Appeals Committee - The determination of all matters where a right of
appeal to elected Members exists under any of the Council’s policies or
procedures.



Appointments Committee - Recommending to the full Council the
appointment of a Chief Executive and deciding upon the appointment of
Strategic Directors and Chief Officers.
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Audit and Standards Committee and Standards Sub-Committee - The
overview of internal and external audit and functions relating to local
government standards.



Development Control Committee - Functions relating to town and country
planning and development control, including tree preservation functions.



Dudley Health and Wellbeing Board - This Board has been formed to
recognise that the Council has a key role to encourage coherent
commissioning strategies across the NHS, social care, public health and
other partners. The Board deals with the responsibilities of the Local
Authority and the GP Consortia for the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
and the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment. It is also involved in developing
a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.



Ernest Stevens Trusts Management Committee - To undertake the Council’s
functions as a Trustee in relation to matters concerning the Ernest Stevens
Trusts and all Trust land in the Borough.



Licensing and Safety Committee and Licensing Sub-Committees (x4) Licensing functions (apart from hackney carriage and private hire licensing),
health and safety functions, other than those exercised by the Council as
employer.



Taxis Committee - Functions relating to hackney carriage and private hire
licensing.
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Agenda Item No. 10

Audit and Standards Committee – 29th July 2019
Report of Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services
Statement of Accounts 2018/19

Purpose of Report
1.

To present the Statement of Accounts to the Audit and Standards Committee
for consideration and approval and to inform the Audit and Standards
Committee of the outcome of the audit of the accounts. The Statement of
Accounts, and the audit of them, are the main formal and public report on the
financial standing of the authority.

Recommendation
2.

It is recommended that:


The Committee consider and comment on the Statement of Accounts.
The Committee authorises the Chair, in consultation with the Chief Officer
(Finance and Legal), to approve the final Statement of Accounts after any
amendments required to reflect work on the valuations of Property, Plant and
Equipment (detailed in paragraphs 19 and 20 )

Background
3.

The audited Statement of Accounts is circulated with the committee papers.
There have been a small number of adjustments to the unaudited accounts
arising from the audit. These changes are detailed below and referred to in the
auditor’s Annual Audit Report. None of these changes affect the Council’s usable
reserves.

4.

These accounts are prepared under International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted for local authorities by the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA).

General Fund outturn
5.

I reported the General Fund outturn to Cabinet on 27th June as £236.3m.
The Statement of Accounts presented to this Committee is consistent with
this outturn position.
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Statement of Accounts
6.

The layout of the Statement of Accounts is as last year, with the Movement in
Reserves (MiRS), which sets out a summary of the changes to General Fund
Balance, Housing Revenue Account (HRA) balance and other reserves over the
year, presented as the first key statement.

7.

The 2018 Code introduced adopted IFRS 15 (Revenues From Contracts with
Customers) and IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments) for local authorities. IFRS 15 sets
out the principles to apply when reporting about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue from customers. There has been no significant impact on
the Dudley MBC Statement of Accounts resulting from the adoption of IFRS 15.

8.

IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 and includes requirements for recognition and
measurement, impairment and derecognition of financial instruments. Adoption of
IFRS 9 has resulted in some changes to the classification of the Council’s
financial assets, the recognition of gains and losses for financial assets,
impairment of financial assets (including trade debtors) and some additional
disclosures but there has been no impact on the General Fund Balance or the
HRA balance

9.

A summary of the key financial statements (as at the time of writing) is detailed
below:

Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS)
10.

This statement shows the movements on the Authority’s reserves, analysed into
‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce
local taxation) and ‘unusable’ reserves.

11.

The Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services shows the true economic cost of
providing the authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES). Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure shows unrealised valuation gains and
losses on property, and on pension assets and liabilities which only affect the
unusable reserves.

12.

The accounting charges in the Surplus or Deficit above are different from the
statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance and the
Housing Revenue Account for Council Tax setting and rent setting purposes.
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations
reverse out the accounting charges (such as actuarial pensions costs) and insert
the statutory ones, such as actual payments for pension provision.

13.

After transfers to and from earmarked reserves, the year end balance on the
General Fund has reduced by £4.0m from £26.6m to £22.6m. This is consistent
with the outturn reported to Cabinet.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES)
14.

The net effect of income and expenditure items results in a deficit on the
provision of services of £8.4m. This is a technical deficit intended to represent
the Council’s revenue position as it would be if calculated according to IFRS. As
such it differs from the movement on the General Fund shown in the MiRS and in
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the outturn report. This is adjusted by Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure (balance sheet revaluation items) to arrive at a total Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure surplus of £26.9m. This matches the increase in
balance sheet net asset value from £300m to £326.9m.

Balance Sheet
15.

The Balance Sheet shows that the value of total net assets has increased by
£26.9m between 31st March 2018 and 31st March 2019, largely due an increase in
the valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment (predominantly Council
Dwellings).

16.

The lower half of the Balance Sheet summarises the usable and unusable
reserves held by the Authority. The General Fund balance has reduced by £4.0m
as discussed above.
 Earmarked General Fund reserves have reduced by £1.6m
 Schools reserves have decreased by £2.7m
 HRA reserves have increased by £0.2m
The changes in unusable reserves mirror the main (revaluation) changes
described above.

Audit of the Accounts
17.

The audit of the accounts for 2018/19 has been completed and the audited
accounts will be published by 31st July.

18.

As a result of the audit process, and reviews by officers, some changes have
been made to the accounts since they were certified by the Head of Finance
(acting as Deputy Section 151 Officer in the absence of Chief Officer of Finance
and Legal) and passed to audit on 31st May.

19.



A Court of Appeal judgement in relation to age discrimination in public
sector pension schemes has resulted in an increase in the future pensions
liability of the authority amounting to £15.8m (£13.4m for General Fund
and £2.4m for HRA). This increased the net expenditure on the CIES by
£15.8m and the pension liability in the Balance Sheet by the same
amount. Actuarial pension costs are reversed by statutory regulations so
this adjustment had no impact on the General Fund and HRA balances.



Additional information has been added and corrections made to a number
of disclosure notes

At the time of writing this report, work was still on-going to establish that the
valuations of both Council Dwellings and Other Land & Buildings in the balance
sheet were robust enough to satisfy the auditors that there was no risk of
material uncertainty. This involves officers conducting a review of the
methodology used to arrive at the valuations for Council Dwellings and additional
valuations of specific assets within Other Land and Buildings. The result of this
additional work may mean that further adjustments need to be made to the
Statement of Accounts. None of the potential adjustments will impact on the
General Fund or HRA balances.
110

20.

In the event of this additional work on asset valuation extending beyond the date
of the Committee meeting, the Committee is requested to delegate the approval
of the Statement of Accounts to the Committee Chair in consultation with the
Chief Officer (Finance & Legal Services)

21.

The Code of Audit Practice requires the auditors to report the results of their audit
work to the approving body before signing their audit opinion. This report will be
presented at this meeting of the Audit and Standards Committee.

22.

A management representation letter is provided to the auditors each year,
assuring auditors that all material information has been made available to them.
This will be signed by the Chief Officer of Finance and Legal, relying in some
matters on assurances by the Head of Law & Governance.

Finance
23.

This report is entirely financial in content, but does not give rise to any
direct costs.

Law
24.

Legislation appertaining to Local Authority Audit and Accounts is contained in the
Local Government Act 1972, part 2 of the Audit Commission Act, 1998, and
regulations made there under.

Equality Impact
25.

The proposals take into account the Council’s Policy on Equality and Diversity.

Human Resources/Transformation

26.

There are no Human Resources / Transformation implications resulting from the
items in this report

Commercial Implications

27.

There are no Commercial implications resulting from the items in this report.
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Iain Newman
Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services
List of Background Papers
Working and supporting papers for the accounts.
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK 2018/19

Contact Officer:

Amarjit Uppal
Telephone: 01384 812425 Email: amarjit.uppal@dudley.gov.uk
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Agenda Item No. 11

Audit and Standards Committee – 29th July 2019
Report of the Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services
Committee Work Plan 2019/20
Purpose of the Report
1.

To introduce a work plan setting out a schedule of agenda items to consider at
Committee meetings in the new Municipal year.

Recommendations
2.

The Committee notes the contents of this report and approves the agenda schedule
at Appendix A.

Background
3.

The Committee has previously agreed to the introduction of a work plan report setting
out scheduled agenda items for the Committee at the first meeting in the Municipal
year.

4.

Attached at Appendix A is a draft schedule of agenda items for the five meetings in
the new Municipal year.

Finance
5.

There are no direct financial implications in this report.

Law
6.

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to maintain a sound
system of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and
the achievement of its aims and objectives; ensures that the financial and operational
management of the authority is effective; and includes effective arrangements for the
management of risk. The meetings of Audit and Standards Committee help to ensure
that a sound system of internal control is in place.

Equality Impact
7.

This report does not raise any equalities issues.
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Human Resources/Transformation
8.

There are no human resources/service transformation implications arising from this
report.

Commercial Implications
9.

The proposed review of Contract Standing Orders will support improvements to
council procurement.

Iain Newman
Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services
Contact Officer:

Graham Harrison
Telephone: 01384 815105
Email: graham.harrison@dudley.gov.uk
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APPENDIX A
Schedule of Agenda items – Municipal Year 2019/20
29th July 2019

Risk Report
Grant Thornton Fee Letter 2019/20
Audit Services Annual Performance Report 2018/19
Committee Work Plan 2019/20
Re-appointment of Standards Sub Committee
Code of Corporate Governance
Annual Governance Statement 2018/19
Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Grant Thornton Audit Findings Report 2018/19

23rd September 2019

Treasury Management
Exceptions to Contract Standing Orders (January 2019 - June
2019)
Audit Services Interim Performance Report
Annual Audit Report – Chief Executive’s Directorate
Grant Thornton Annual Audit Letter 2018/19
Standing Orders relating to Contracts

9th December 2019

Annual Report of the Committee on Standards in Public Life
Disciplinary Suspensions
Risk Report
Annual Audit Report – Place Directorate
Financial Regulations

10th February 2020

Audit Services Interim Performance Report
Grant Thornton Grant Certification Report 2018/19
Treasury Management
Annual Audit Report – People
Grant Thornton Audit Plan 2019/20 including Informing the Audit
Risk Assessment

20th April 2020

Exceptions to Contract Standing Orders (July 2019 - December
2019
Annual Fraud Report
Audit Services Annual Plan 2020/21
Whistleblowing Policy
Risk Report
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Agenda Item No. 12

Audit and Standards Committee – 29th July, 2019
Report of the Monitoring Officer
Re-appointment of the Standards Sub-Committee

Purpose of Report
1.

To re-appoint the Standards Sub-Committee.

Recommendation
2.

That the Standards Sub-Committee be re-appointed for 2019/20, with its existing
terms of reference and that the Membership of the Sub-Committee comprise the
Chair (Councillor A Taylor), the Vice-Chair (Councillor J Roberts) and a Member to
be nominated by the Labour Group.

Background
3.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Localism Act 2011, and following the introduction
of the Council’s revised Standards Arrangements in 2012, this Committee agreed to
appoint a Standards Sub-Committee.

4.

The purpose of the Standards Sub-Committee is to hear and determine complaints
against Members and Co-opted Members under the provisions of the Members’
Code of Conduct and in accordance with the local procedures that have been put in
place.

5.

The Sub-Committee comprises three elected members. Political proportionality is
waived as to Membership and it is a matter for this Committee to decide the
composition and membership. The Council agreed at the annual meeting that the
proportionality requirement be waived for this municipal year.

6.

For 2019/20, it is recommended that the Sub-Committee comprise the Chair
(Councillor A Taylor), the Vice-Chair (Councillor J Roberts) and a Member to be
nominated by the Labour Group.

Finance
7.

The cost of holding meetings of the Sub-Committee are met from within existing
resources.
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Law
8.

The relevant provisions are contained in the Localism Act, 2011 together with
regulations, orders and statutory guidance issued by the Secretary of State.

Equality Impact
9.

The Sub-Committee will meet to hear and determine complaints about alleged
breaches of the Local Code of Conduct requiring Members and Co-opted Members
to behave in a manner that is consistent with seven overriding principles so as to
achieve best value for their residents and maintain public confidence in the
Authority. The principles will have a bearing on issues such as equality.

Human Resources/Transformation
10.

There are no direct implications.

Commercial Implications
11.

There are no commercial considerations relating to this report.

.......................................
Mohammed Farooq
Monitoring Officer
Contact Officer:

Steve Griffiths
Telephone: 01384 815235
Email: steve.griffiths@dudley.gov.uk

List of Background Papers
The Council’s Constitution
Report and Minutes of the Annual Council Meeting
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Agenda Item No. 13
Audit & Standards Committee – 29th July 2019
Report of the Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services
Audit Services Annual Performance Report 2018/2019
Purpose of the Report
1.

To give Members an overview of the performance of Audit Services for the year
ending 31st March 2019.

Recommendations
2.

The Committee accept this report on the performance of Audit Services during
2018/19.

3.

The Committee requests Members who have not attended this Committee for a
number of years to complete the questionnaire included at Appendix E.

4.

The Committee to review the self - assessments included at Appendices F and G.

Background
Independence
5.

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require that Audit Services (Internal
Audit) is independent and this is achieved by the Head of Audit Services reporting
to the Audit and Standards Committee and having free and unfettered access to the
Chief Executive and the Chair of the Audit and Standards Committee.

6.

The Head of Audit Services is not aware of any issues that have impinged on the
independence of Audit Services during 2018/19 or interference in determining the
scope of internal auditing, performing work and communicating results.

Performance Management
7.

Audit Services completed 93% of the audit plan as at 31st March 2019 (compared
with 95% in 2017/18). The work outstanding at the year end has now been
completed except for two audits, which could not be started until April 2019, being
deferred to 2019/20. Performance was impacted by the long term sickness of a
Senior Auditor between mid November 2018 and 31st March 2019.

8.

Audit Services reviewed 64 areas of activity, which are summarised in Appendix A.
Cancelled audits and audits completed during 2018/19 that were not in the original
audit plan are shown in Appendix B. In addition to this, Audit Services carried out:

2 Honorary audits,
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9

57 School Financial Value Standard assessment reviews,
Work on 1 Multi - Academy Trust audit.

The audit work carried out resulted in 574 Actions being raised. Of these, 122 were
classified as High priority, 347 as Medium priority, and 105 as Advisory. There
were also 50 actions that were unimplemented from the previous review. Please
see Appendix C. The following assurance ratings were given for Council audits:
Assurance Rating
Substantial
Reasonable
Minimal

Percentage Achieved (%)
16
70
14

10.

Audit Services reported in the Annual Fraud Report that was presented to the April
meeting of this Committee that work had been completed in line with the Fraud
Action Plan on prevention, detection, investigation and resolution.

11.

Audit Services have supported Council Managers during the year with advice on
internal controls, systems, IT security, compliance with Financial Regulations and
Contract Standing Orders. Members of the team also attended a number of
corporate groups.

12.

Audit Services have a target of nine weeks to produce and issue the draft report
from the start date of the audit. During 2018/19 (as at 31st March 2019), Audit
Services achieved 92% against a target of 90%.

13.

Managers are required to provide an initial response within four weeks of the date
of the draft report. This is to encourage Managers to liaise with Audit Services on a
more timely basis. 89% of Managers (as at 31st March 2019) provided an initial
response within four weeks.

14.

Audit Services currently have a target of issuing the final audit report within six
weeks of the date of the draft report. This target requires the support and cooperation of Strategic Directors/Chief Officers. During 2018/19 (as at 31st March
2019), 87% of final reports were issued within six weeks of the date of the draft
report. This compares with 90% during 2017/18.

15.

It was previously resolved by this Committee, that Audit Services would follow up
audit reports which had an overall assurance rating of “Minimal” or “Requires
Improvement” within six months of the date the final report was issued and the
results would be presented to this Committee. This was to enable the Committee to
assess management action, in appropriate cases on a more timely basis. During
the year the following “Minimal” and “Requires Improvement” assurance reports
were issued:
Audit

Original
Rating

Property Income
Information@Work Systems
Review

Minimal
Minimal
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First
Follow Up
Rating
N/A
N/A

Next Follow Up
Date
October 2019
July 2019

Public Sector Partners Dudley
LLP
HR and Payroll Systems
Review
M3 Public Protection Systems
Review
Redhall Primary School
Alder Coppice Primary School
Bromley Hills Primary School

16.

Minimal

N/A

October 2019

Minimal

Minimal

February 2020

Minimal

N/A

October 2019

Requires
Improvement
Requires
Improvement
Requires
Improvement

N/A

July 2019

N/A

July 2019

N/A

July 2019

Also the “Minimal” assurance audit reports issued in 2017/18 and outstanding in
2018/19 were followed up. HR Transactions and Special Educational Needs were
found not to have made sufficient progress for the assurance rating to change;
these will be subject to further follow up reviews. Good progress was made in
addressing the Actions raised relating to New Heritage Regeneration and as result
the assurance rating improved to “Reasonable”.
Audit

Original
Rating

HR Transactions
New Heritage Regeneration
Special Educational Needs

Minimal
Minimal
Minimal

First
Follow Up
Rating
Minimal
Reasonable
Minimal

Next Follow Up
Date
February 2020
N/A
November 2019

17.

In addition to the follow up of “Minimal” and “Requires Improvement” assurance
audit reports, Audit Services also follows up all “High” priority Actions approximately
six months after the issue of the final audit report. During the period up to the 31st
March 2019, Audit Services followed up 66 high priority Actions. Further detail on
these will be included in the directorate annual reports.

18.

It is proposed to amend the Actions ratings and overall assurance ratings for
2019/20. There will be a “Critical” Action rating to cover the most serious issues
identified. The raising of a “Critical” Action will automatically mean the overall
assurance rating for the audit is “Minimal”. There will also be a new assurance
rating “Limited” that will sit between “Minimal” and “Reasonable” assurance. This is
to cover situations where there are some significant issues to address but these
issues are not of the magnitude for it to receive “Minimal” assurance.

Budget
19.

The cost of providing Audit Services during 2018/19 was approximately £415,000
(including overhead recharges) which was a saving to budget of approximately
£31,000. The saving was achieved by not appointing to a Principal Auditor vacancy
until the end of January 2019, but offset by not achieving the income target.

Customer Feedback
20.

To obtain feedback about the quality of work, post-audit questionnaires are issued
to customers after most audits. They are asked to respond to questions relating to
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the various stages of the audit process and also to provide an overall rating. Of the
22 questionnaires returned, 19 indicated that they had received either a “Very
Good” or “Good” service and three stated they had received a “Satisfactory”
service. Where a “Satisfactory” questionnaire is received, further contact is made
with the service manager.
21.

Audit Services also received 19 compliments during 2018/19 and no complaints.

Training
22.

Audit Services have over the last few years developed a number of online training
courses:

Financial Regulations,

Introduction to Audit and Control,

Fraud Awareness,

Governance.
These courses are regularly reviewed and updated. Audit Services also provide
face to face training on request.

Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme
23.

From the 1st April 2013, CIPFA endorsed the new Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS) which are based on the international standards for the
professional practice of internal auditing, but provide additional requirements and
interpretations for UK public sector bodies.

24.

The Head of Audit Services maintains a quality assurance and improvement
programme that covers all aspects of internal audit activity and includes both
internal and external assessments. Internal assessments would include the
following:











The Head of Audit Services would review all planning documentation and
audit terms of reference (except for Schools) prior to them being issued. For
Schools, a methodology is agreed in advance of the annual audit plan
commencing to determine which areas are to be considered,
All internal audit work is reviewed by a more senior officer,
The Head of Audit Services reviews all draft and final reports before they
are issued,
Post audit questionnaires are returned to the Head of Audit Services for
review,
The Head of Audit Services undertakes the detail review of a number of
audit files each year,
The Head of Audit Services monitors the quality reports generated from the
audit electronic system,
The Head of Audit Services monitors the time spent on audits and the
timeliness of audits being completed and ensures key performance
indicators are being achieved,
The Head of Audit Services meets with Chief Officers and Heads of Service
on a regular basis and views on the internal audit service are obtained,
Benchmarking of procedures and activities are undertaken with other
Council internal audit teams on a regular basis,
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Internal Audit Plans and Corporate Risk Registers are compared with
similar organisations,
An Action Plan detailing all improvement and quality activity is maintained,
The Head of Audit Services monitors the internal audit press/media to
understand developments in the profession.

25

The internal quality assurance programme has not identified any significant non
conformances with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) including the
Code of Ethics. A training event for audit staff on the Code of Ethics took place
during 2017/18 and refresher training will be provided in 2019/20. The Improvement
Programme has resulted in changes to the follow up process, report formats, audit
ratings, audit brief and planning document.

26.

The Standards were revised in April 2017 and the Head of Audit Services carried
out a self-assessment against these revised Standards which was then presented
and discussed at Audit and Standards Committee in April 2018. The Head of Audit
Services reported that he was not aware of any significant non compliances with the
Standards and Code of Ethics.

27.

The PSIAS require that an external assessment against the Standards is carried out
once every five years by a qualified, independent assessor. An assessment was
carried out in November 2014 by an ex professor of internal audit and current Chief
Executive of an internal audit provider who found that Dudley Audit Services met
the Standards. The next external quality assessment is due this year and the details
of the assessment will be discussed and agreed with this Committee in due course.

Audit & Standards Committee
28.

CIPFA have recently published updated guidance on Audit Committees (Audit
Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police 2018 Edition).
This guidance contains documents to self-assess whether the Audit Committee is
complying with good practice and whether the Audit Committee is effective. It also
contains a position statement on the role of the Audit Committee (Appendix D).
The Head of Audit Services has previously brought assessments against the
previous guidance (2013 Edition) to this Committee on a regular basis. The Head of
Audit Services has now carried out a self-assessment against these revised
documents and they are attached at Appendices F and G.

29.

CIPFA also suggest Members should evaluate their skills and knowledge and at a
previous Committee meeting it was agreed that new Members of the Committee
should use a questionnaire developed by CIPFA early in each new Municipal year
to identify any training needs in respect of the work of the Committee. This
questionnaire is included at Appendix E.

External Audit
30.

Audit Services have regular dialogue with Grant Thornton and provide access to
working papers and reports. This helps to co-ordinate audit activity and avoids
unnecessary duplication. Grant Thornton have stated in relation to Audit Services:
“Overall, we have concluded that the internal audit service provides an independent
and satisfactory service to the Council and that internal audit work contributes to an
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effective internal control environment. Our review of internal audit work to date has
not identified any weaknesses which impact on our audit approach.”
Head of Audit Services Opinion
31.

The Head of Audit Services is required by Public Sector Internal Audit Standards to
deliver an internal audit opinion that can be used by the Council to inform its annual
governance statement. The annual internal audit opinion must conclude on the
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, risk
management and control.

32.

This opinion is based principally on the work carried out by Audit Services during
2018/2019. It must be acknowledged, however, that it is not possible to review all
aspects of governance, risk management and control within a single year. In giving
the opinion it should be noted that assurance can never be absolute. The most that
internal audit can provide is reasonable assurance that there are no major
weaknesses in the Council’s governance, risk management and control processes.
In assessing the level of assurance the following have been taken into account:





33.

All internal audit reviews including consultancy undertaken for the year
ending 31st March 2019,
Follow up reviews undertaken on High priority actions and audits that have
been given a “Minimal” or “Requires Improvement” assurance rating,
Whether any High priority actions have not been accepted by Management,
Any other assurance opinion given by other providers, which Audit Services
have relied upon.

The Head of Audit Services opinion is as follows:
“I am satisfied that sufficient assurance work has been carried out to allow me to
form a reasonable conclusion as to the adequacy and effectiveness of Dudley
MBC’s overall internal control environment and there has been no limitations to the
scope of our activity or resource constraints imposed on Audit Services which have
impacted on our ability to meet the full internal audit needs of the Council.
Taking into account what is detailed in paragraph 32, for the 12 months ended 31st
March 2019, I am able to provide “Reasonable” assurance on Dudley MBC’s
framework of governance, risk management and internal control, which is required
in order to achieve the Council’s priorities. The main concern relates to an audit of
payroll transactions, which received a “Minimal” assurance rating during 2017/18
and the follow up work undertaken has identified that insufficient progress has been
made for this assurance rating to change. There are still serious concerns on the
operation of the ICT system and there are still a large number of issues to be
addressed. Audit Services will continue to monitor the situation during 2019/20.”

Finance
34.

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The cost of
internal audit is met from within the base budget of the Council.
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Law
35.

The Council has a statutory duty under section 151 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1972 to make arrangements for the proper administration of their
financial affairs. This includes a duty to have effective controls and procedures in
place to prevent, detect and investigate fraud.

36.

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 state a relevant authority must undertake an
effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control
and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing
standards or guidance.

Equality Impact
37.

This report does not raise any equal opportunities issues.

38.

The work of Audit Services helps to protect the interests of children and young
people, albeit they were not consulted on, or involved, with the development of the
work carried out.

Human Resources/Transformation
39.

This report does not contain any human resources/service transformation
implications.

Commercial Implications
40.

There are no commercial considerations relating to this report.

Iain Newman
Chief Officer Finance and Legal Services
Contact Officer:

Graham Harrison
Telephone: 01384 815105
Email: graham.harrison@dudley.gov.uk

List of Background Papers
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
CIPFA’s Audit Committees Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (2018)
Audit Services Reports
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Appendix A
AUDIT WORK CARRIED OUT DURING 2018/19
PEOPLE DIRECTORATE (14 audits)
Child Sexual Exploitation
Delayed Transfer of Care (DTOC)

Strengthening Families Grant Claim
Children's, Adults and Health and WellBeing Quality Monitoring
Dudley Disability Duty Consultancy
Voluntary Sector Innovation Fund
Youth Offending
Advice and Support
Follow Up

Dudley Disability Service
Personal Budgets/Direct Payments
Financial Exploitation
Healthy Council Switches
Use of Resources (Children’s Services
Business Support Consultancy)
SCHOOLS (14 audits)
Alder Coppice Primary
Halesbury Special School
Bromley Hills Primary
Howley Grange Primary
Christchurch Primary
Jesson’s Primary
Greenfield Primary
Milking Bank Primary
School Recruitment
Pens Meadow Special School
Advice and Support
Redhall Primary
Follow Up
The Brier Special School
PLACE DIRECTORATE (13 audits)
Public Sector Partnership (PSP)
Property Income
Stores Contract
CRC Annual Report
Himley Hall
Enforcement Teams
Rent Accounting (Key Controls)
Dangerous Structures
Housing Assistance Grants
IMPACT Programme
Community Safety/Safe and Sound
Advice and Support
Partnership
Follow Up
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S DIRECTORATE (23 audits)
Social Care System Replacement Project
Income Management
General Data Protection Regulations
Treasury (Key Controls)
HR and Payroll Processes
Benefits (Key Controls)
Corporate Governance
Council Tax (Key Controls)
Corporate Performance Management
Debtors (Key Controls)
Financial Regulations
Budget Management (Key Controls)
iTrent Exploitation
General Ledger (Key Controls)
ICT Audit: HR and Payroll Systems Review Creditors (Key Controls)
Advice and Support
BACS (Key Controls)
Payment Card Industry Standards
Follow Up
Business Rates (Key Controls)
ICT Audit: M3 Public Protection Systems
Review
ICT Audit: Information@Work System
Review
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Appendix B
CANCELLED AUDITS
REASON
The structure and the role of the Board
was being reviewed in light of new
legislation and government guidance.

PEOPLE DIRECTORATE
Children's Safeguarding Board

PLACE DIRECTORATE
Recycling Service

The long term absence of the Head of
Service, vacancy for a Recycling Officer,
reviewing recycling contracts and
legislative changes due imminently
impacting on recycling.

NB1/ The above audits were replaced with Himley Hall Income, further work on Dudley
Disability Service and M3 Public Protection Systems Review.

Appendix C
SUMMARY OF ACTIONS

AREAS
PLACE
PEOPLE
CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S
SCHOOLS
TOTAL

No. of
Audits

Total

High

13
14

126
226

27
41

82
126

17
59

10
4

23
14
64

107
115
574

34
20
122

48
91
347

25
4
105

5
31
50

126

Medium Advisory Unimplemented

Appendix D
CIPFA’s Position Statement: Audit Committees in Local Authorities and Police
The scope of this Position Statement includes all principal local authorities in the
UK, the audit committees for PCCs and chief constables in England and Wales, and
the audit committees of fire and rescue authorities.
1.

Audit committees are a key component of an authority’s governance framework.
Their function is to provide an independent and high-level resource to support good
governance and strong public financial management.

2.

The purpose of an audit committee is to provide to those charged with governance
independent assurance on the adequacy of the risk management framework, the
internal control environment and the integrity of the financial reporting and
governance processes. By overseeing both internal and external audit it makes an
important contribution to ensuring that effective assurance arrangements are in
place.

3.

Authorities and police audit committees should adopt a model that establishes the
committee as independent and effective. The committee should:

act as the principal non-executive, advisory function supporting those
charged with governance

in local authorities, be independent of both the executive and the scrutiny
functions and include an independent member where not already required to
do so by legislation

in police bodies, be independent of the executive or operational
responsibilities of the PCC or chief constable

have clear rights of access to other committees/functions, for example,
scrutiny and service committees, corporate risk management boards and
other strategic groups

be directly accountable to the authority’s governing body or the PCC and
chief constable.

4.

The core functions of an audit committee are to:

be satisfied that the authority’s assurance statements, including the annual
governance statement, properly reflect the risk environment and any actions
required to improve it, and demonstrate how governance supports the
achievement of the authority’s objectives

in relation to the authority’s internal audit functions:
- oversee its independence, objectivity, performance and professionalism
- support the effectiveness of the internal audit process
- promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance framework

consider the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management arrangements
and the control environment, reviewing the risk profile of the organisation and
assurances that action is being taken on risk-related issues, including
partnerships and collaborations with other organisations
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monitor the effectiveness of the control environment, including arrangements
for ensuring value for money, supporting standards and ethics and for
managing the authority’s exposure to the risks of fraud and corruption
consider the reports and recommendations of external audit and inspection
agencies and their implications for governance, risk management or control
support effective relationships between external audit and internal audit,
inspection agencies and other relevant bodies, and encourage the active
promotion of the value of the audit process.
review the financial statements, external auditor’s opinion and reports to
members, and monitor management action in response to the issues raised
by external audit.

5.

An audit committee can also support its authority by undertaking a wider role in
other areas including:

considering governance, risk or control matters at the request of other
committees or statutory officers

working with local standards and ethics committees to support ethical values

reviewing and monitoring treasury management arrangements in accordance
with Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and
Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes (CIPFA, 2017)

providing oversight of other public reports, such as the annual report.

6.

Good audit committees are characterised by:

a membership that is balanced, objective, independent of mind,
knowledgeable and properly trained to fulfil their role. The political balance of
a formal committee of a council will reflect the political balance of the council,
however, it is important to achieve the right mix of apolitical expertise

a membership that is supportive of good governance principles and their
practical application towards the achievement of organisational objectives

a strong independently minded chair – displaying a depth of knowledge,
skills and interest. There are many personal qualities needed to be an
effective chair, but key to these are:
- promoting apolitical open discussion
- managing meetings to cover all business and encouraging a candid
approach from all participants
- an interest in and knowledge of financial and risk management, audit,
accounting concepts and standards, and the regulatory regime

unbiased attitudes – treating auditors, the executive and management fairly

the ability to challenge the executive and senior managers when required.
7. To discharge its responsibilities effectively the committee should:

meet regularly – at least four times a year, and have a clear policy on those
items to be considered in private and those to be considered in public

be able to meet privately and separately with the external auditor and with
the head of internal audit

include, as regular attendees, the CFO(s), the chief executive, the head of
internal audit and the appointed external auditor. Other attendees may
include the monitoring officer (for standards issues) and the head of

128





resources (where such a post exists). These officers should also be able to
access the committee, or the chair, as required
have the right to call any other officers or agencies of the authority as
required, while recognising the independence of the chief constable in
relation to operational policing matters
report regularly on its work to those charged with governance, and at least
annually report an assessment of their performance. An annual public report
should demonstrate how the committee has discharged its responsibilities.
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Appendix E
CORE AREAS OF KNOWLEDGE
Knowledge area

Organisational
knowledge

Details of core
knowledge required
An overview of the
governance structures of
the authority and
decision-making
processes
Knowledge of the
organisational objectives
and major functions of
the authority

Audit committee
role and functions
(Chapters 3 and
6)

An understanding of the
audit committee’s role
and place within the
governance structures.
Familiarity with the
committee’s terms of
reference and
accountability
arrangements

How the audit committee
member is able to apply
the knowledge
This knowledge will be
core to most activities of
the audit committee
including review of the
Annual Governance
Statement, internal and
external audit reports and
risk registers

This knowledge will enable
the audit committee to
prioritise its work in order
to ensure it discharges its
responsibilities under its
terms of reference and to
avoid overlapping the work
of others

Knowledge of the
purpose and role of the
audit committee
Governance
(Chapter 4)

Knowledge of the seven
principles of the
CIPFA/Solace
Framework and the
requirements of the
Annual Governance
Statement

The committee will review
the local code of
governance and consider
how governance
arrangements align to the
principles in the framework
The committee will plan
the assurances it is to
receive in order to
adequately support the
Annual Governance
Statement (AGS).

Knowledge of the local
code of governance

The committee will review
the AGS and consider how
the authority is meeting
the principles of good
governance

Internal audit
(Chapter 4)

An awareness of the key
principles of the Public
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The audit committee has
oversight of the internal

Required
(Yes or No)

Knowledge area

Details of core
knowledge required
Sector Internal Audit
Standards and the Local
Government Application
Note.
Knowledge of the
arrangements for delivery
of the internal audit
service in the authority
and how the role of the
head of internal audit is
fulfilled

How the audit committee
member is able to apply
the knowledge
audit function and will
monitor its adherence to
professional internal audit
standards
The audit committee will
review the assurances
from internal audit work
and will review the riskbased audit plan. The
committee will also receive
the annual report,
including an opinion and
information on
conformance with
professional standards
In relying on the work of
internal audit, the
committee will need to be
confident that professional
standards are being
followed
The audit committee chair
is likely to be interviewed
as part of the external
quality assessment and
the committee will receive
the outcome of the
assessment and action
plan

Financial
management and
accounting
(Chapter 4)

Awareness of the
financial statements that
a local authority must
produce and the
principles it must follow to
produce them
Understanding of good
financial management
principles

Knowledge of how the
organisation meets the
requirements of the role
of the Chief Finance
Officer (CFO), as
required by The Role of
the Chief Financial
Officer in Local
Government (CIPFA,
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Reviewing the financial
statements prior to
publication, asking
questions
Receiving the external
audit report and opinion on
the financial audit

Reviewing both external
and internal audit
recommendations relating
to financial management
and controls
The audit committee
should consider the role of
the CFO and how this is
met when reviewing the

Required
(Yes or No)

Knowledge area

External audit
(Chapter 4)

Details of core
knowledge required
2016) and the CIPFA
Statement on the Role of
Chief Financial Officers in
Policing (2018)
Knowledge of the role
and functions of the
external auditor and who
currently undertakes this
role
Knowledge of the key
reports and assurances
that external audit will
provide
Knowledge about
arrangements for the
appointment of auditors
and quality monitoring
undertaken

Risk
management
(Chapter 4)

Counter fraud
(Chapter 4)

Understanding of the
principles of risk
management, including
linkage to good
governance and decision
making
Knowledge of the risk
management policy and
strategy of the
organisation
Understanding of risk
governance
arrangements, including
the role of members and
of the audit committee

An understanding of the
main areas of fraud and
corruption risk to which
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How the audit committee
member is able to apply
the knowledge
Annual Governance
Statement.

The audit committee
should meet with the
external auditor regularly
and receive their reports
and opinions
Monitoring external audit
recommendations and
maximising benefit from
audit process
The audit committee
should monitor the
relationship between the
external auditor and the
authority and support the
delivery of an effective
service
In reviewing the AGS, the
committee will consider
the robustness of the
authority’s risk
management
arrangements and should
also have awareness of
the major risks the
authority faces
Keeping up to date with
the risk profile is
necessary to support the
review of a number of
audit committee agenda
items, including the riskbased internal audit plan,
external audit plans and
the explanatory foreword
of the accounts. Typically,
risk registers will be used
to inform the committee
The committee should
also review reports and
action plans to develop the
application of risk
management practice
Knowledge of fraud risks
and good fraud risk
management practice will
be helpful when the

Required
(Yes or No)

Knowledge area

Details of core
knowledge required
the organisation is
exposed
Knowledge of the
principles of good fraud
risk management
practice in accordance
with the Code of Practice
on Managing the Risk of
Fraud and Corruption
(CIPFA, 2014)
Knowledge of the
organisation’s
arrangements for tackling
fraud

Values of good
governance
(Chapter 5)

Knowledge of the Seven
Principles of Public Life
Knowledge of the
authority’s key
arrangements to uphold
ethical standards for both
members and staff
Knowledge of the
whistleblowing
arrangements in the
authority

Treasury
management
(only if it is within
the terms of
reference of the
committee to
provide scrutiny)
(Chapter 5)

Effective Scrutiny of
Treasury Management is
an assessment tool for
reviewing the
arrangements for
undertaking scrutiny of
treasury management.
The key knowledge areas
identified are: regulatory
requirements
treasury risks
the organisation’s
treasury management
strategy
the organisation’s
policies and procedures
in relation to treasury
management
See also Treasure Your
Assets (CfPS, 2017)
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How the audit committee
member is able to apply
the knowledge
committee reviews the
organisation’s fraud
strategy and receives
reports on the
effectiveness of that
strategy
An assessment of
arrangements should
support the Annual
Governance Statement
and knowledge of good
fraud risk management
practice will support the
audit committee member
in reviewing that
assessment
The audit committee
member will draw on this
knowledge when
reviewing governance
issues and the Annual
Governance Statement
(AGS).
Oversight of the
effectiveness of
whistleblowing will be
considered as part of the
AGS. The audit committee
member should know to
whom concerns should be
reported
Core knowledge on
treasury management is
essential for the
committee undertaking the
role of scrutiny

Required
(Yes or No)

Appendix F
Audit committee purpose and governance
Good practice questions
1
Does the authority have a dedicated audit committee?

Yes

Partly No



2

Does the audit committee report directly to full council?
(applicable to local government only)



3

Do the terms of reference clearly set out the purpose of the
committee in accordance with CIPFA’s Position Statement?



4

Is the role and purpose of the audit committee understood
and accepted across the authority?



5

Does the audit committee provide support to the authority in
meeting the requirements of good governance?



6

Are the arrangements to hold the committee to account for
its performance operating satisfactorily?



Functions of the committee
7
Do the committee’s terms of reference explicitly address all
the core areas identified in CIPFA’s Position Statement?
good governance
assurance framework, including partnerships and
collaboration arrangements
internal audit
external audit
financial reporting
risk management
value for money or best value
counter fraud and corruption
supporting the ethical framework
8

9

10
11

Is an annual evaluation undertaken to assess whether the
committee is fulfilling its terms of reference and that
adequate consideration has been given to all core areas?
Has the audit committee considered the wider areas
identified in CIPFA’s Position Statement and whether it
would be appropriate for the committee to undertake them?
Where coverage of core areas has been found to be limited,
are plans in place to address this?
Has the committee maintained its advisory role by not taking
on any decision-making powers that are not in line with its
core purpose?
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N/A



Membership and support
12
Has an effective audit committee structure and composition
of the committee been selected?
This should include:
a) separation from the executive
b) an appropriate mix of knowledge and skills among the
membership
c) a size of committee that is not unwieldy








consideration has been given to the inclusion of at least one
independent member (where it is not already a mandatory
requirement)
13

Have independent members appointed to the committee
been recruited in an open and transparent way and
approved by the full council or the PCC and chief constable
as appropriate for the organisation?
14
Does the chair of the committee have appropriate
knowledge and skills?
15
Are arrangements in place to support the committee with
briefings and training?
16
Has the membership of the committee been assessed
against the core knowledge and skills framework and found
to be satisfactory?
17
Does the committee have good working relations with key
people and organisations, including external audit, internal
audit and the CFO?
18
Is adequate secretariat and administrative support to the
committee provided?
Effectiveness of the committee
19
Has the committee obtained feedback on its performance
from those interacting with the committee or relying on its
work?
20
Are meetings effective with a good level of discussion and
engagement from all the members?
21
Does the committee engage with a wide range of leaders
and managers, including discussion of audit findings, risks
and action plans with the responsible officers?
22
Does the committee make recommendations for the
improvement of governance, risk and control and are these
acted on?
23
Has the committee evaluated whether and how it is adding
value to the organisation?
24
Does the committee have an action plan to improve any
areas of weakness?
25
Does the committee publish an annual report to account for
its performance and explain its work?
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N/A














Appendix G
Assessment Key
5
Clear evidence is available from a number of sources that the committee is
actively supporting improvements across all aspects of this area. The
improvements made are clearly identifiable.
4
Clear evidence form some sources that the committee is actively and
effectively supporting the improvement across some aspects of this area.
3
The committee has had mixed experience in supporting improvement in
this area. There is some evidence that demonstrates their impact but there
are also significant gaps.
2
There is some evidence that the committee has supported improvements,
but the impact of this support is limited.
1
No evidence can be found that the audit committee has supported
improvements in this area.
Areas where the
audit committee
can add value
by supporting
improvement

Promoting the
principles of
good
governance and
their application
to decision
making

Examples of how the audit committee can add
value and provide evidence of effectiveness

Overall
assessment:
5–1
See key
above

Supporting the development of a local code of
governance
Providing robust review of the AGS and the
assurances underpinning it
Working with key members/PCC and chief
constable to improve their understanding of the
AGS and their contribution to it
Supporting reviews/audits of governance
arrangements

5

Participating in self-assessments of governance
arrangements

Contributing to
the
development of
an effective
control
environment

Working with partner audit committees to
review governance arrangements in
partnerships
Actively monitoring the implementation of
recommendations from auditors
Encouraging ownership of the internal control
framework by appropriate managers
Raising significant concerns over controls with
appropriate senior managers
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5

Supporting the
establishment of
arrangements
for the
governance of
risk and for
effective
arrangements to
manage risks

Reviewing risk management arrangements and
their effectiveness, e.g. risk management
benchmarking
Monitoring improvements
Holding risk owners to account for major/strategic
risks

4

Possible Improvements:
Receive reports comparing risk management arrangements with other
Authorities to ensure effectiveness.
Advising on the Specifying its assurance needs, identifying gaps
adequacy of the or overlaps in assurance
assurance
Seeking to streamline assurance gathering and
framework and
reporting
considering
whether
Reviewing the effectiveness of assurance
assurance is
providers, e.g. internal audit, risk management,
deployed
external audit
efficiently and
effectively

3

Possible Improvements:
Further develop reporting of Corporate Risks so as to identify gaps in
assurance.
Reviewing the audit charter and functional
Supporting the
reporting arrangements
quality of the
internal audit
Assessing the effectiveness of internal audit
activity,
arrangements, providing constructive challenge
particularly by
underpinning its and supporting improvements
organisational
Actively supporting the quality assurance and
independence
improvement programme of internal audit
Reviewing how the governance arrangements
Aiding the
achievement of support the achievement of sustainable outcomes
the authority’s
Reviewing major projects and programmes to
goals and
ensure that governance and assurance
objectives
through helping arrangements are in place
to ensure
Reviewing the effectiveness of performance
appropriate
management arrangements
governance,
risk, control and
assurance
arrangements
Possible Improvements:
Review the Council’s major projects and programmes.
These matters are partially covered by Scrutiny Committees
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5

4

Supporting the
development of
robust
arrangements
for ensuring
value for money

Ensuring that assurance on value for money
arrangements is included in the assurances
received by the audit committee

Helping the
authority to
implement the
values of good
governance,
including
effective
arrangements
for countering
fraud and
corruption risks

Reviewing arrangements against the standards
set out in the Code of Practice on Managing the
Risk of Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA, 2014)

Promoting
effective public
reporting to the
authority’s
stakeholders
and local
community and
measures to
improve
transparency
and
accountability

Improving how the authority discharges its
responsibilities for public reporting; for example,
better targeting at the audience, plain English
Reviewing whether decision making through
partnership organisations remains transparent
and publicly accessible and encourages greater
transparency

Considering how performance in value for money
is evaluated as part of the AGS

Reviewing fraud risks and the effectiveness of the
organisation’s strategy to address those risks
Assessing the effectiveness of ethical governance
arrangements for both staff and governors

5

5

3

Publishing an annual report from the committee

Possible Improvements:
Review reporting to the Authority’s stakeholders and local community
Publish an annual report
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